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RSC

Equipment Rental

Corporate Profile

RSC Holdings Inc. (NYSE: RRR) based
in Scottsdale, Ariz., is the holding
company for the operating entity, RSC
Equipment Rental, Inc., which is one of
the largest equipment rental providers
in North America. RSC serves the
non-residential construction and
industrial markets with one of the
youngest fleets in the inudustry and
with an original equipment fleet cost
of approximately $2.7 billion, RSC
offers superior levels of equipment
availahility, reliability and service

to customers through an integrated
network of more than 470 rental
locations across 39 states in the
United States and in four Canadian
provinces. With more than 5,400
employees committed to continuous
safety and 24/7 customer care, RSC
delivers the loyal customer support
needed to build the future. Additional
information about RSC is available at
www.RSCrental.com.

Revenue breakdown by category

Rental revenue
87%

Sale of Sale of used
merchandise equipment

1000 f

Financial Highlights

Revenue
(% in millions}

1,769
$1,653 s

$1,461

P $1,329
$1,218

N

. =,
2003 2004 2005
| W Rental revenue

| “A sale of merchandise v
| 3 Sales of used equipment \

Adjusted EBITDA * ¢
($ in millions) |, :

" \ $824 /.

'Annual Utilization*

706% T20% T28%

. 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

B A
“Utilization is the avérage percentage of flest cost on rent.




President’s Letter ‘

Dear Stockhoiders,

2007 marked another historic year for RSC. Not only did we have our initial public
offering in May, but even more important, we deliveréd another year of record
financial results. Our team of 5,486 dedicated employees helped RSC to provide
exceptional service and high quality products to our almost 500,000 customer
accounts. Our results in 2007 are driven by our disciplined business model and
constant attention on executing our strategy. In a year characterized by market
and economic uncertainty, we continued to build market share and grew our rental
revenues by 12.7%. QOur same store rental revenue grew 11.1%, and our adjusted
EBITDA as a percentage of total revenues reached a record 46.6%. We were able
to generate this high level of organic and profitable growth entirely through cash
flows generated by the business and at 24% return on operating capital employed
we continued to create value for our sharehaolders. Erik Olsson

Chief Executive Officer & President

Operating Highlights

In addition to the strong rental revenue growth and higher margins, 2007 marked a year of continued operational
improvements. Thanks to our relentless focus on capital efficiency we reached a record eguipment utilization level
of 72.8% as averaged over the year. This utilization record is largely attributed to continuous fleet movement to areas
with strong customer demand and our achievement of being 98% current on manufacturer-suggested preventive
maintenance for our rental fleet. In addition to having the youngest and best maintained equipment in the industry,
RSC customers enjoyed the benefit of our +95% on-time delivery performance, extending our commitment of
dependability. We continued to execute our same store growth strategy by adding 99 net new sales people in the

BEST-IN-CLASS CUSTOMER SERVICE STANDARDS

KEY CUSTOMER REQUIREMENTS

AVAILABILITY RELIABILITY SERVICE

A Unlimited supply A No break-downs A Hassle-free experience
A Top-quality brands A Fast service response A Professional & courteous
A Diverse equipment categories A Safe and modern equipment A Partnership & commitment

RESULTING IN CUSTOMER DRIVEN INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS SUCH AS...

A Fleet sharing A Preventive maintenance A 24/7 in-house support
A Delivery & pickup cycle time A Field service A On time delivery & pickup

A Repair cycle time A Major repair outsourcing A Billing accuracy
A Handheld scanners A Foam-filled tires A Process improvement - 55

CUSTOMER SERVICE DRIVES REVENUE GROWTH AND RETENTION
1]




RSC provides energy customers the
24/7 service and reliability they need.

year thereby further penetrating existing sales territories, adding new territories and offering a better service to our
customers. We opened 21 new branches during the year using our successful “warm start” strategy, which establishes
a sales presence, customer relations and a revenue stream in a new area adjacent to our existing branch network
before we open the new branch. This method allowed our new branches to take off quickly and produce above
company average EBITDA margins for the year.

Our industrial revenues grew 15.3% during 2007 - faster than our non-residential base, and continue to be a high growth
opportunity. Industrial rentals make up over 30% of our rental revenues and are a valuable means of diversification
from our non-residential construction customer base, which makes up less than 85% of our rental revenues.

Revenue breakdown by
end market

Non-residential construction

Industrial Residential
construction

The focus of industrial customers is normally on the high capacity utilization of their
facilities and machinery. As a result, they are more likely to outsource their equipment
rental needs to a company like RSC who has experts that know the equipment, can
service it and can cost effectively manage a fleet of equipment at a site. Many of our
industrial customers have long standing relationships with RSC due to our unique
ability to add value to their operations. We understand their specialized equipment
needs and can provide the right equipment and first-rate customer service that
industrial customers expect. Qur managed services concept, which helps to address
a customer’s entire equipment rental needs, creates great value and results in loyal,
long standing relationships. This can be illustrated by our unique and proprietary
software Total Control® that enables our customers to manage their entire equipment
fleet with real time data. Another example is our Maobile Tool Rooms, which are on-site

UNIQUE BUSINESS MODEL

MANUFACTURER PERSPECTIVE ENTREPRENEURIAL SPIRIT

A Capital efficiency
A Cost control

A Decentralized service and relationships
A Close to the customer

A Continuous improvement A Exceeding customer expectations

w

CUSTOMERS

A Availability
A Reliability

A Service
A Local relationship

CORE OPERATING PRINCIPLES

CAPITAL PEOPLE INNOVATION

A Rental focus A Decentralized A Global processes
A Return focus A Small span of control A Continuous improvement
A Demand driven capex A Accountability A Net Promoter Score (NPS)
APull vs. Push A Compensation aligned

with strategy

UNIQUE BUSINESS MODEL DRIVES SHAREHOLDER VALUE




Industrial customers can be serviced
on site for greater efficiency.

tool trailers with a customized inventory specifically designed to fit our industrial customer’s needs. They are used
for a variety of purposes, such as shut downs, turnarounds and new construction projects. With our proprietary
software, managed services, customer driven innovations and our business model, RSC is perfectly suited to service
diverse industrial markets.

Business Model

We believe the impressive results RSC has delivered over the last years are due to having the best employees in the
industry executing on our superior business mode!. Our model focuses on profitable growth, strict management of
capital expenditures, continuous improvement and exceeding customer expectations. Each time we hit a goal we
raise the bar to continue to drive excellent performance. The metrics we measure, like time utilization, preventive
maintenance, on-time delivery and Net Promoter Scores are becoming industry metrics and the standards we set are
becoming benchmarks. This has helped to transform our industry to be much more efficient, profitable, and effective.
Although we consider ourselves the leader in the industry, we are still humbled by the opportunities for greater
improvements and we will continue to maximize this opportunity.

Our innovative culture and unique business model originated from the combination of two distinct business models:
manufacturing and entrepreneurial. The manufacturer perspective drives financial strength by focusing on capital
planning and efficiency, cost control and continuous improvement, while the entrepreneurial spirit of a decentralized
organization facilitates being close to the customer and can move quickly to exceed expectations. This combination

OUR VALUES

SAFETY AND RESULTS DRIVEN

2 Performing our jobs in a manner that is safe for our employees, customers and the general public,
supports the consistent achievement of outstanding financial and operational results - Safety First

INTEGRITY AND OPENNESS IN ALL THAT WE DO

A Conducting our business with unwavering integrity and openness is essential to providing an environment
of trust and respect - Honesty and Fairness, Access and Transparency

PASSION FOR PEOPLE AND DIVERSITY

A  Developing a passionate and diverse workforce is the best way to serve our customers and drive
company results - People Make it Happen

COMMITMENT TO CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

2 Innovating and constantly improving our processes and services is critical for customer satisfaction and
market leadership - Premier Products and Innovative Services

DECENTRALIZED TO BE CLOSE TO THE CUSTOMER

7 Empowering and supporting all of our people to provide outstanding customer service by making
informed decisions that exceed customer expectations — Rental is a Local Business




The non-residential construction market offers
high demand for RSC’s multiple products.

of strength and speed form the foundation of cur core operating principles to maintain our leadership position by
focusing on servicing our customers, hiring the best people, managing our fleet with great care and striving to be
innovative in all of our processes.

The rental industry is highly fragmented with the top 10 rental companies having only an estimated 25% combined
market share. One of the reasons for the fragmentation is equipment rental is a local, relationship-driven business

and service is key. RSC’s decentralized structure enables our local branches to act quickly to meet customer needs
and they also have the authority to make it happen. Qur local approach is backed by our network of more than 470
locations sharing approximately $2.7 billion in fleet, utilizing our IT systems and processes to achieve capital efficiency.
The speed of a local business combined with the systems, resources and strength of a large organization is a powerful
combination we employ to drive profitable growth and gain market share.

Outlook

There is much anticipation that 2008 will have a softer non-residential market, especially in the commercial construction
segment, which highlights the importance for RSC to continue to execute our business model to grow our revenues
and cash flow. Due to our disciplined approach and our great employees, we expect to be able to continue to grow
faster than the underlying markets and remain the recognized industry leader. Starting with safety, our values are fully
ingrained into our Company culture, enabling us to excel and generate significant value for our custorners and our
stockholders. While 2008's economic conditions may be unsettled, we are primed for greatness in execution and for
delivering more than just equipment.

Take care and be safe,

2% Ol

Erik Olsson
Chief Executive Officer & President

THE KEY TO RSC 1S WE DELIVER MORE THAN EQUIPMENT,
WE DELIVER. ..

the right equipment, at the right place, at the right time
quality equipment that is dependable and well maintained

a safety focus, reliable and dedicated team

greater productivity and profits

... ABETTER WAY OF DOING BUSINESS.
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Introductory Note

Unless the context otherwise requires, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, (i) “we,” “us” “our” and “RSC
Holdings™ means RSC Holdings Inc., formerly known as Atlas Copco North America Inc., or ACNA, our ultimate
parent company, (i) “RSC” means RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. and RSC Equipment Rental of Canada, Ltd, which are
our operating entities and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of RSC Holdings, and, when used in connection with
disclosure relating to indebtedness incurred under the Senior Credit Facilities and in connection with the notes, RSC
Holdings III, LLC, (iv) “Ripplewood” means RSC Acquisition LLC and RSC Acquisition I1 LLC, (v) “Qak Hill”
means OHCP II RSC, LLC, OHCMP II RSC, LLC and OHCP II RSC COI, LLC, (vi) the “Sponsors” means
Ripplewood and Oak Hill, (vii) “ACAB” means Atlas Copco AB, and (viii} “ACF” means Atlas Copco Finance S.a.r.l.

The information included herein with respect to RSC Holdings gives effect to a 37,435 for 1 stock split effected
on May 18, 2007 by RSC Holdings. The common stock of RSC Holdings is publicly traded on the New York Stock
Exchange with the ticker symbol “RRR”.

Cautionary Statement for Forward-Looking Information

All statements other than statements of historical facts included in this Annual Repon, including, without
limitation, statements regarding our future financial position, business strategy, budgets, projected costs and plans
and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements. In addition, forward-looking

LEITY ” i

statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may”, “plan”, “seek”,

“will”, “expect”, “intend”, “estimate”, “anticipate”, “believe” or “continue” or the negative thereof or variations
thereon or similar terminology.

Forward-looking statements include the statements in this Annual Report regarding, among other things:
management forecasts; efficiencies; cost savings and opportunities to increase productivity and profitability;
income and margins; liquidity; anticipated growth; economies of scale; the economy; future economic perfor-
mance; our ability to maintain profitability during adverse economic cycles and unfavorable external events; our
business strategy; future acquisitions and dispositions; litigation; potential and contingent liabilities; management’s
plans; taxes; and refinancing of existing debt.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can
give no assurance that such expectations will prove to have been correct. Important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from our expectations are set forth-below and disclosed under “Risk Factors” and
elsewhere in this Annual Report, including, without limitation, in conjunction with the forward-looking statements
included in this Annual Report. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or
petsons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the following cautionary statements:

* the effect of an economic downturn or other factors resulting in a decline in non-residential construction and
capital investment;

+ increased competition from other companies in our industry and our inability to increase or maintain our prices;
» risks related to the credit markets willingness to continue to lend to borrowers rated B- and Caal;

* our ability to generate cash and/or incur additional indebtedness to finance equipment purchases;

» heavy reliance on centralized information systems;

* exposure to claims for personal injury, death and property damage resulting from the use of equipment
rented or sold by us;

* the effect of changes in laws and regulations, including those relating to the environment and customer
privacy, among others;

* fluctuations in fuel or supply costs;

* claims that the software products and information systems on which we rely infringe on the intellectual
property rights of others; and

* the other factors described in [tem 1A of this Annual Report under the caption “Risk Factors.”
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In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual
Report might not prove to be accurate and you should not ptace undue reliance upon them. All forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date made, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Item 1. Business

Our Company
Overview

We are one of the largest equipment rental providers in North America. We operate through a network of
473 rental locations across 10 regions in 39 U.S. states and 4 Canadian provinces. We believe we are the largest or
second largest equipment rental provider in the majority of the regions in which we operate. During the 18 months
ended December 31, 2007, we serviced approximately 465,000 customers primarily in the non-residential
construction and industrial markets. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we generated approximately 87%
of our revenues from equipment rentals, and we derived the remaining 13% of our revenues from sales of used
equipment and other related items. We believe our focus on high margin rental revenues, active fleet management
and superior customer service has enabled us to achieve significant market share gains exclusively through organic
growth while sustaining attractive returns on capital employed. Through December 31, 2007, we experienced 18
consecutive quarters of positive same store, year-over-year rental revenue growth, with same store rental revenue

. growth of approximately 1 1%, 19% and 18% and operating income growth of approximately 8%, 31% and 44% in

2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We rent a broad selection of equipment, primarily to industrial and non-residential consiruction companies,
ranging from large equipment such as backhoes, forklifts, air compressors, scissor lifts, booms and skid-steer
loaders to smaller items such as pumps, generators, welders and electric hand tools. As of December 31, 2007, our
rental fleet had an original equipment cost of $2.7 billion covering over 1,100 categories of equipment. We strive to
differentiate our offerings through superior levels of equipment availability, reliability and service. The strength of
our fleet lies in its age, condition and diversity. We believe our fleet is the youngest and best maintained in the
industry among our key competitors, with an average fleet age of 26 months as of December 31, 2007. Our young
fleet age provides us with significant operational flexibility, and we actively manage the condition of our fleet in
order to provide customers with well maintained and reliable equipment and to support cur premium pricing -
strategy. Qur disciplined fleet management strategy enables us to maintain pricing discipline and optimize fleet
utilization and capital expenditures. As a result, we have a high degree of equipment sharing and mobility within
regions. This enables us to increase equipment utilization and react quickly by adjusting the fleet size in response to
changes in customer demand. In addition to ovr equipment rental operations, we sell used equipment and
merchandise complementary to our rental operations.

Organizational Overview

Prior to November 27, 2006, RSC Holdings was wholly owned by ACAB and Atlas Copco Airpower n.v.
(“ACA™), a wholly owned subsidiary of ACAB (collectively, “Atlas”™). On October 6, 2006, Atlas announced that it
had entered into a recapitalization agreement (the “Recapitalization Agreement’) pursuant to which the Sponsors,
acquired 85.5% of RSC Holdings (the “Recapitalization™). The Recapitalization closed on November 27, 2006 (the
“Recapitalization Closing Date”). Prior to the closing of the Recapitalization, RSC Holdings formed RSC
Holdings I, LLC, which is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of RSC Holdings; RSC Holdings II, LLC, which
is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of RSC Holdings [, LLC; and RSC Holdings II1, LLC, which is a direct wholly
owned subsidiary of RSC Holdings I1, LLC. RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. is a direct subsidiary of RSC Holdings I11,
LLC; and RSC Equipment Rental of Canada Ltd., is a direct subsidiary of RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. RSC is the
operating entity of RSC Holdings.

RSC Holdings is the sole member of RSC Holdings I, LLC, which, in turn, is the sole member of RSC
Holdings Il, LLC, which, in turn, is the sole member of RSC Holdings III, LLC. RSC Hoeldings III, LLC is the parent
of RSC. Because RSC Holdings IH, LLC is a limited liability company that does not have a Board of Directors, its
business and affairs are managed by the Board of Directors of RSC Holdings, its ultimate parent.

As part of the Recapitalization, we offered $620 million aggregate principal amount of 9%:% Senior Notes due
2014 (the “Notes™). As of the closing of the Recapitalization, on November 27, 2006, we borrowed $1,124 million
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under the new senior asset-based loan facilities (the “Senior ABL Facilities™) and $1,130 million under the new
senior second-lien term loan facility (the “Senior Term Facility”, together with the Senior ABL Facilities, the
“Senior Credit Facilities”). As of December 31, 2007 the balance on the Senior Credit Facilities is $1,974.2 million.

RSC Holdings repurchased a portion of its issued and outstanding common stock from Atlas for (i) a purchase
price of $3,345 million (the “Purchase Price™), as adjusted pursuant to the terms of the Recapitalization Agreement
and (ii) the obligation of RSC Holdings to issue up to $400 million aggregate principal amount of contingent earn-
out notes. The principal amount of the contingent earn-out notes is determined based on adjusted EBITDA
thresholds. Because RSC Holdings did not meet the cumulative adjusted EBITDA thresholds for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2007, the maximum remaining contingent earn-out note that can be issued is $250 million.

The Sponsors made a $500 million cash equity investment in RSC Holdings, less a partial return of equity to
the Sponsors of $40.0 million, in exchange for a portion of the issued and outstanding common stock of RSC
Holdings. Immediately after the Recapitalization, Ripplewood and Oak Hill each owned 42.735% of RSC
Holdings’ issued and outstanding capital stock and ACF owned 14.53% of RSC Holdings’ issued and outstanding
capital stock. In May 2007, RSC Holdings completed an initial public offering of its common stock. The number of
common shares offered was 20,833,333. Of these shares, 12,500,000 were new shares offered by RSC Holdings and
8,333,333 were shares offered by its stockholders. As of December 31, 2007 Ripplewood and Oak Hill each own
33.7% of RSC Holdings’ issued and outstanding common stock and ACF owns 11.5% of RSC Holdings’ issued and
outstanding common stock.

Business Strategy

Increase market share and pursue profitable growth.  Through our high quality flect, large scale and national
footprint and superior customer service, we intend to take advantage of the opportunities for profitable growth
within the North American equipment rental market by:

+ continuing to drive the profitability of existing branches and pursuing same store growth;
+ continuing to invest in and maintain our high quality fleet to meet local customer demands;
+ leveraging our reputation far superior customer service to increase our customer base;

* increasing our market penetration by opening new branches in targeted markets to leverage existing
infrastructure and customer relationships;

» increasing our presence in complementary rental and service offerings to increase same store revenues,
margins and return on investment;

« continuing to align incentives for local management teams with both prefit and growth targets; and
+ pursuing selected acquisitions in attractive markets, subject o economic conditions.

Further drive profitability, cash flow and return on capital. We believe there are opportunities to further
increase the profitability of our operations by continuing to:

» focus on the higher margin rental business;

* actively manage the quality, reliability and availability of our fleet and offer superior customer service,
which supports our premium pricing strategy;

= evaluate each new investment in fleet based on strict return guidelines;

» deploy and allocate fleet among our operating regions based on pre-specified return thresholds to optimize
utilization; and

* use our size and market presence to achieve economies of scale in capital investment.

Further enhance our industry leading customer service. 'We believe that our position as a leading provider of
rental equipment to our customers is driven in large part by our superior customer service and our reputation for
such service. We intend to continue to provide superior customer service and maintain our reputation for such
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service. We believe this will allow us to further expand our customer base and increase our share of the fragmented
U.S. equipment rental market.

Business

Our business is focused on equipment rental and includes sales of used rental equipment and sales of
merchandise that is tied to the use of our rental equipment.

We offer for rent over 1,100 categories of equipment on an hourly, daily, weekly or monthly basis. The type of
equipment that we offer ranges from large equipment such as backhoes, forklifts, air compressors, scissor lifts,
booms and skid-steer loaders to smaller items such as pumps, generators, welders and electric hand tools. Our rental
revenues grew from $899.2 million in 2003 to $1,543.2 million in 2007, representing a compound annual growth
rate of 14.5%, exclusively through organic growth,

We routinely sell used rental equipment and invest in new equipment to manage the age, size and composition
of our fleet and to adjust to changes in demand for specific rental products, We realize what we believe to be
attractive sales prices for our used equipment due to our rigorous preventive maintenance program. We sell used
rental equipment primarily through our existing branch network and, to a lesser extent through other means,
including through third parties such as equipment auctions and brokers. As a convenience for our customers, we
offer for sale a broad selection of contractor supplies, including safety equipment such as hard hats and goggles,
consumables such as blades and gloves, tools such as ladders and shovels and certain other ancillary products. We
also sell a small amount of new equipment.

Operations

We are organized into three geographic divisions and operate in 10 regions across those divisions. Each
division is overseen by a divisional senior vice president and each region is headed by a regional vice president. Our
operating regions typically have 8 to 11 districts headed by a district manager overseeing on average 5 to 6 rental
branches and each branch is managed by a branch manager. Our Canadian region has 5 districts and 21 rental
branches. In the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, 4.9%, 4.0% and 3.4%, respectively, of our revenue
was derived from Canada. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 4.8% and 4.0% of our long-lived assets, and 3.6%
and 2.9% of our total assets were located in Canada. Please see Note 16 to our notes to consolidated financial
statements for further business segment and geographic information.

Operating within guidelines established and overseen by our executive management, regional and district
personnel are able to make decisions based on the needs of their customers. Our executive management conducts
monthly operating reviews of regional performance and also holds three formal meetings with representatives of
each operating region per year. These meetings encompass operational and financial reviews, leadership devel-
opment and regional near-term strategy. Regional vice presidents, district managers and branch managers are
responsible for management and customer service in their respective areas and are directly responsible for the
financial performance of their respective region, district and branch, and their variable compensation is tied to the
profitability of their area.

Customers

We have long and stable relationships with most of our customers, including the majority of our top 20
accounts. We have steadily increased our account activations per month over several years and during the 18 months
ended December 31, 2007, we serviced approximately 465,000 customers, primarily in the non-residential
construction and industrial markets, During the year ended December 31, 2007, no one customer accounted for
more than 2% of our total revenues, and our top 10 customers combined represented less than 10% of our total
revenues. We do not believe the loss of any one customer would have a material adverse effect on our business.

We have a diversified customer base consisting of two major end-markets, non-residential construction, and
industrial. Qur customers represent a wide variety of industries, such as non-residential construction, petrochem-
ical, paper/pulp and food processing. Further, non-residential construction is comprised of different segments,
including: office, power, commercial, healthcare and educational construction. Serving a number of different
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industries enables us to reduce our dependence on a single or limited number of customers in the same business and
somewhat reduces our dependence on construction cycles and the seasonality of our revenues.

Customers from the non-residential construction and industrial markets accounted for approximately 95% of
our rental revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007. Non-residential construction customers vary in size from
national and regional to local companies and private contractors and typically make use of the entire range of rental
equipment and supplies that we offer. Non-residential construction projects vary in terms of length, type of
equipment required and location requiring responsive and flexible services.

Industrial customers are largely geographically concentrated along the Gulf Coast of the United States, as well
as in industrial centers such as Chicago and Fort McMurray in Alberta, Canada. Rental services for these customers
can be grouped into the following activities:

e “run and maintain,” which relates to day to day maintenance;
* “turnaround,” which relates to major planned general overhaul of operations; and
* “capital projects,” which relate to smaller expansion or modification work,

In our experience, industrial customers engage in long-term service contracts with trusted suppliers to meet
their equipment requirements. In order to capitalize on this trend, we operate rental yards on-site at the facilities of
some of our largest industrial customers pursuant to three to five year contracts that may be cancelled by either party
upon 30 days’ notice. Under these contracts, we typically agree to service all of our customers’ equipment rental
needs, including products we do not typically rent. We have also developed a proprietary software application, Total
Control®, which provides our industrial clients with a single in-house software application that enables them to
monitor and manage all their rental equipment. This software can be integrated into the ‘customers’ enterprise
resource planning system.

Residential construction customers are located throughout the country and accounted for approximately 5% of
our rental revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Customer Service. To ensure prompt response 10 customer needs, we operate a 24/7 in-house call center,
which we believe gives us a competitive advantage because few of our competitors provide this service. Qur in-
house call center staff is highly trained and has access to our customer related databases providing clients with
best-in-class service. Additicnally, customers have full access to all company employees on call, enabling
appropriate support at any time. We also pursue a number of initiatives to assess and enhance customer satisfaction.
With the assistance of professional research firms, we conduct customer focus groups to assess brand awareness and
overall service quality perception. In addition, we contact approximately 23,000 of our customers annually to
determine their overall satisfaction levels. We also test the quality of our service levels by recording randomly
selected phone calls with customers for coaching opportunities and to evaluate courtesy and staff knowledge.

Fleet

As of December 31, 2007, our rental fleet had an original equipment cost of $2.7 billion covering over 1,100
categories of equipment, and in the year ended December 31, 2007, our rental revenues were $1,543.2 million.
Rental terms for our equipment vary depending on the customer’s needs, and the average rental term in the year
ended December 31, 2007 was between seven and ten days. We believe that the size of our purchasing program and
the relative importance of our business to our suppliers allow us to purchase fleet at favorable prices and on
favorable payment terms. We believe that our highly disciplined approach to acquiring, deploying, sharing,
maintaining and divesting fleet represents a key competitive advantage and is one of the main reasons that we lead




the industry in profitability and returns on invested capital. The following table provides a breakdown of our fleet in
terms of original cost as of December 31, 2007.

Eqguipment Rental Fleet Breakdown

As of December 31, 2007 % _of Total
Aerial Work Platform (AWP)booms. ............ e 29.3
Fork lfts . . e e e e e e 226
Earth moving . .. .. .. e 18.1
AW P SCI8S0TS .« . Lo o e 11.1
TIUCKS . . oot it e e e 4.3
Air........... e e e 34
Generators/Light TOWErS . . . . L ... . e e 2.8
COMPACHION . . . . ..ttt e e e e et et e e 2.6
1 1T 5.8

Fleet Management Process. We belicve that our disciplined fleet management process, with its focus on
capital efficiency whereby new investments are evaluated on strict return guidelines and at a local level, enables us
to maintain optimal fleet utilization. Consistent with our decentralized operating structure, each region is
responsible for the quality of its allocated fleet, providing timely fleet maintenance, fleet movement and fleet
availability. This process is led by regional fleet directors who make investment/divestment decisions within strict
return on investment guidelines. Fleet requirements are first determined at a local level and are then evaluated for
potential internal equipment reallocation on a district or regional level. Local revenues are forecasted on a
branch-by-branch basis. Regional vice presidents use this information to develop near term regional customer
demand estimates and appropriately allocate investment requirements on the basis of targeted utilization and rental
rates. As aresult of this process, our fleet time utilization has increased from 63.9% for the year ended December 31,
2003 to 72.8% for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The regional fleet process is overseen by our corporate fleet management, which is responsible for the overall
allocation of the fleet among and between the regions. We evaluate all electronic investment requests by regional
fleet directors and develop and enforce a ceiling for the fleet size for each region based on short-term local outlook,
return and efficiency requirements and need at the time, and identify under-utilized equipment for sale or internal
transfer.

Corporate fleet management will accept a new capital investment request only if such investment is deemed to
achieve a pre-specified return threshold and if the request cannot be satisfied through internal fleet reallocation.
Divestments or fleet transfers are evaluated when the fleet generates returns below the pre-specified threshold. If
corporate fleet management cannot identify a need for a piece of equipment in any region, the equipment is targeted
for sale. We realize what we belicve to be attractive sales prices for our used equipment due to our rigorous
preventive maintenance program. We sell used rental equipment primarily through our existing branch network and,
to a lesser extent through other means, including through third parties such as equipment auctions and brokers.

We also continuously monitor the profitability of our equipment through our information management
systems. Each piece of equipment is tracked and evaluated on a number of performance criteria, including time
utilization rate, average billing rate, preventive maintenance, age and, most importantly, return on investment. We
utilize this data to help guide the transfer of equipment to locations where the highest utilization rates, highest prices
and best returns can be achieved. We have tools to identify optimal pricing strategies for rental equipment at the
local level. Pricing decisions are made at a local level to reflect current market conditions. Daily reports, which
allow for review of agreements by customer or contract, enable local teams to monitor trends and limit discounting
that can suppress rental rates. '

We have also made proprietary improvements to our information management systems, such as integrating our
maintenance and reservation management systems, which prioritize equipment repairs based on customer reser-
vations and time in shop. The majority of major repairs are outsourced to enable RSC to focus on maintenance and
parts replacement. We have also implemented a rigorous preventive maintenance program that increases reliability,
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decreases maintenance cosls, extends the equipment’s useful life and improves fleet availability and the ultimate
sales price we realize on the sale of used equipment. These initiatives have resulted in a reduction of unavailable
fleet as a percentage of total fleet from 16.7% for the year ended December 31, 2003 to 8.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2007. In addition, in December 2007, 98.0% of our fleet was current on its manufacturer’s
recommended preventive maintenance.

Fleet Procurement. We believe that our size and focus on long-term supplier relationships enable us to
purchase equipment directly from manufacturers at favorable prices and on favorable terms. We do not enter into
long-term purchase agreements with equipment suppliers because we wish to preserve our ability to respond
quickly and beneficially to changes in demand for rental equipment. To ensure security of supply, we do, however,
maintain non-binding arrangements with our key suppliers whereby we communicate frequently with our suppliers
so that they can plan their production capacity needs. Accordingly, original equipment manufacturers deliver
equipment to our facilities based on our current needs in terms of quantity and timing. We have negotiated favorable
payment terms with the majority of our equipment suppliers. We believe that our ability to purchase equipment on
what we believe are favorable terms represents a key competitive advantage afforded to us by the scale of our
operations.

Over the last several years, we have reduced the number of suppliers from which we purchase rental equipment
to two suppliers each for almost all major equipment categories that we offer for rent. We believe that we could
readily replace any of our existing suppliers if it were no longer advantageous to purchase equipment from them.
Our major equipment suppliers include JLG, Genie, Skyjack and John Deere. In 2007, we purchased $580.2 million
of new rental equipment compared to $721.3 mitlion and $691.9 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Fleet Age. We believe our diverse equipment fleet is the youngest, best maintained and most reliable in our
industry among our key competitors. From December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2007, the average age of our fleet
declined from 44 months to 26 months. We expect our fleet to age a few months in 2008, as we purchase less new
fleet compared to 2006 and 2007. Through our fleet management process discussed above under “Fleer
Management Process,” we actively manage the condition of our fleet to provide customers with well maintained
and reliable equipment and to support our premium pricing strategy.

Sales and Marketing
We market our products and services through:
* a branch-based sales force operating out of our network of local branches;
* local and national advertising efforts; and
 our self-service, web-based solution: RSC Online®.

Sales Force. 'We believe that our sales force is one of the industry’s most productive and highly trained. As of
December 31, 2007, we had an inside sales team performing a variety of functions such as handling inbound
customer rental requests and servicing customers at each branch and 737 outside sales employees servicing existing
customers and soliciting new business on construction or industrial sites. Our sales force uses a proprietary territory
management software application to target customers in their specific area, and we develop customized marketing
programs for use by our sales force by analyzing each customer group for profitability, buying behavior and product
selection. All members of our sales force are required to attend frequent in-house training sessions to develop
product and application knowledge, sales techniques and financial acumen. Our sales force is supported by regional
sales and marketing managers.

RSC Online®. We provide our customers with a self-service, web-based solution: RSC Online®. Our
customers can reserve equipment online, review reports, use our report writer tool to create customized reports,
terminate rental equipment reservations, schedule pick-ups and make electronic payments 24 hours a day, 7 days a
week. In addition, we maintain a home page on the Internet (http://www.rscrental.com) that includes a description
of our products and services, our geographic locations and our online catalogue of used rental equipment for sale, as
well as live 24/7 “click to chat” support.




Information Systems

We operate a highly customized rental information management system through which key operational and
financial information is made available on a daily basis. Our executive management team uses this information to
monitor current business activities closely, looking at customer trends and proactively responding to changes in the
marketplace. Our enterprise resource management system is comprised of software licensed from Wynne Systems,
Inc. and a number of proprietary enhancements covering, among others, financial performance, fleet utilization,
service, maintenance and pricing. The system fully integrates all branch operations such as rentals, sales, service
and cash management, with the corporate activities, including finance, fixed asset and inventory management. All
rental transactions are processed real-time through a centralized server and the system can be accessed by any
employee at the point of sale to determine equipment availability, pricing and other customer specific information.
Primary business servers are outsourced to IBM, including the provision of a disaster recovery system.

Members of our management can access all of these systems and databases throughout the day at all of our
locations or through the Internet via a secure key to analyze items such as:

« fleet utilization and return on investment by individual asset, equipment category, branch, district or region;
« pricing and discounting trends by branch, district, region, salesperson, equipment category Or customer;
« revenue trends by branch, district, region, salesperson, equipment category or customer; and

» financial results and performance of branches, districts, regions and the overall company.

We believe that our use of information technology is a key component in our successful performance and that
continued investment in this area will help us maintain and improve upon our customer satistaction, responsiveness
and flexibility.

Intellectual Property

We have registered or are in the process of registering the marks RSC and RSC Equipment Rental and certain
other trademarks in the United States and Canada. We have not registered all of the trademarks we own and use in
the business. Generally, registered trademarks have perpetual life, provided that they are renewed on a timely basis
and continue to be used properly as trademarks.

Competition

The equipment rental industry is highly competitive and highly fragmented, with large numbers of companies
operating on a regional or local scale. Our competitors in the equipment rental industry range from other large
national companies to small regional and local businesses. The number of industry participants operating on a
national scale is, however, much smaller. We are one of the principal national-scale industry participants in the
United States and Canada; the other national-scale industry participants being United Rentals, Inc., Hertz
Equipment Rental Corporation and Sunbelt Rentals. Certain of our key regional competitors are Neff Rental,
Inc., NES, Ahern Rentals, Inc. and Sunstate Equipment Co. A number of individual Caterpillar dealers also
participate in the equipment rental market in the United States and Canada. )

Competition in the equipment rental industry is intense, and is defined by equipment availability, reliability,
service and price. Our competitors, some of which may have access to substantial capital, may seek to compete
aggressively on the basis of pricing or new fleet availability. To the extent that we choose to match our competitors’
downward pricing, it could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations. To the extent that we choose
not to match or remain within a reasonable competitive distance from our competitors” pricing, it could also have an
adverse impact on our results of operations, as we may lose rental volume.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 5,486 employees. Employee benefits in effect include group life insurance,
medical and dental insurance and a defined contribution pension plan. Labor contracts covering the terms of
employment of approximately 121 of our employees are presently in effect under 8 collective bargaining

7




agreements with local unions relating to 21 separate rental locations in 7 states. We may be unable to negotiate new
labor contracts on terms advantageous to us or without labor interruptions. We have had no material work stoppage
as a result of labor problems during the last five years. We believe our labor relations to be good.

Regulatory Matters
Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Our operations are subject to a variety of federal, state, local and foreign environmental, health and safety laws
and regulations. These laws regulate releases of petroleum products and other hazardous substances into the
environment as well as storage, treatment, transport and disposal of wastes, wastewater, stormwater and air quality
and the remediation of soil and groundwater contamination. These laws also regulate our ownership and operation
of tanks used for the storage of petroleum products and other regulated substances.

We have made, and will continue to make, expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations,
including, among others, expenditures for the investigation and cleanup of contamination at or emanating from
currently and formerly owned and leased propertics, as well as contamination at other locations at which our wastes
have reportedly been identified. Some of these laws impose strict and in certain circumstances joint and several
liability on current and former owners or operators of contaminated sites for costs of investigation and remediation.
‘We cannot assure you that compliance with existing or future environmental, health and safety requirements will not
require material expenditures by us or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flow.

We are currently remnediating contamination at several current and former facilities. Our activity primarily
relates to investigating and remediating soil and groundwater contamination at various current and former facilities,
which contamination may have been caused by historical operations (including operations conducted prior to our
involvement at a site) or releases of regulated materials from underground storage tanks or other sources.

We rely heavily on outside environmental engineering and consulting firms to assist us in complying with
environmental taws. While our environmental, health and safety compliance costs are not expected to have a
material impact on our financial position, we do incur significant costs to purchase and maintain wash racks and
storage tanks and to minimize any unexpected releases of regulated materials from such sources.

Transportation, Delivery and Sales Fleet

We lease at variable interest rates vehicles we use for transportation and delivery of fleet equipment and
vehicles used by our sales force under capital leases with leases typically ranging from 48 to 96 months. Our
delivery fleet includes tractor trailers, delivery trucks and service vehicles. The vehicles used by our sales force are
primarily pickup,trucks. Capital lease obligations amounted to $142.0 million and $128.7 miliion at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively, and we had approximately 4,100 units and 3,800 units leased at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

Management

Set forth below are the names, ages and positions of our directors and executive officers as of March 14, 2008.

Name Age Position

Erik Olsson. ..................... 44  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Charles Foster . . . ................. 48  Senior Vice President of Operations

Homer Graham .. ................. 56  Senior Vice President of Operations

Kevin Groman. ................. .. 37 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

Phillip Hobson . ... ............... 41 Senior Vice President, Corporate Operations

David Ledlow .................... 49  Senior Vice President of Operations

Duvid Mathieson . . . ............... 53  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Joseph Turturica . ................. 40 Senior Vice President and Chief People Officer
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Erik Olsson has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of RSC since August 2006. Mr. Olsson joined
RSC in 2001 as Chief Financial Officer and in 2005 became RSC’s Chief Operating Officer. During the 13 years
prior to 2001, Mr. Olsson held various senior financial management positions at Atlas Copco Group in Sweden,
Brazil and the United States, most recently serving as Chief Financial Officer for Milwaukee Electric Tool
Corporation in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, an Atlas Copco Group owned company at that time, from 1998 to 2000.

Charles Foster has served as Senior Vice President, Operations (Southeast, Southern, South Central and Texas
Regions) of RSC since 2006. Mr. Foster joined the corporation in 1984 as a management trainee of Prime
Equipment, a predecessor to Prime Service, Inc., which merged into Rental Service Corporation to form RSC.
Mr. Foster has held several management positions within RSC, including Regional Vice President for operations in
Georgia, Florida and Alabama, Regional Vice President for the Southern Region from 2001 10 2004 and, most
recently, Regional Vice President for the Southeast Region from 2004 to 2006.

Homer Graham has served as Senior Vice President, Operations (Northeast, Midwest and Great Lakes
Regions) of RSC since 2006. Mr. Graham joined Rental Service Corporation, a predecessor to RSC, in 1998,
holding various field management positions, serving most recently as Regional Vice President for the Northeast
Region. Prior to joining RSC, Mr. Graham served as a general manager for Approved Equipment Company, later
acquiring the company and operating it for 18 years.

Kevin Groman has served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of RSC since
December 2006. Prior to joining RSC, Mr. Groman served as Vice President, Associate General Counsel, Deputy
Compliance Officer and Assistant Secretary of PetSmart, Inc., a specialty pet retail supplies and services company.
Mr. Groman held various positions at PetSmart from 2000 to 2006. From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Groman held several
counsel positions including Senior Counsel and Assistant Secretary with CSK Auto Corporation, an auto parts
retailer operating under the names Checker, Schuck’s, and Kragen Auto Parts Stores.

Phillip Hobson has served as Senior Vice President, Corporate Operations of RSC since February 2007, From
2005 to 2007, Mr. Hobson served as Vice President, Innovation, and as its Director of Internal Audit from 2004 to
2005. From 2002 to 2004 he served as Director of Financial Planning, and he joined RSC in 1998, as a financial
analyst. Prior to joining RSC, Mr. Hobson held various financial management related positions with Sunstate
Equipment Co. and the Northwest Division of Pizza Hut.

David Ledlow has served as Senior Vice President, Operations (Mountain, Western and Canadian Regions) of
RSC since 2006. Mr. Ledlow joined Rental Service Corporation, a predecessor to RSC, in 1984 and has occupied
positions in outside sales, sales management, regional management, and served as Regional Vice President for the
Southeast Region from 1996 to 2000 and Regional Vice President for the Western/Mountain Region from 2001 1o
2006. Prior to joining RSC, Mr. Ledlow was Vice President of Sales at Walker Jones Equipment, a company later
acquired by Rental Service Corporation, a predecessor to RSC.

David Mathieson has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of RSC since January 2008.
Most recently, he was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Milwaukee-based Brady Corporation, a
position he held since 2003, Prior to joining Brady in 2001, Mr. Mathieson had a 20 year career with Honeywell
International Inc., in the U.S. and in several European countries, last serving as Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, Honeywell EMEA in Brussels, Belgium. Mr. Mathieson is a Fellow of the Chartered Management
Accounting Institute in the U.K. and studied for this qualification at Glasgow College of Commerce and Glasgow
Caledonian University. He is a member of the Board of Directors of Tennant Company.

Joseph Turturica has served as Senior Vice President and Chief People Officer of RSC since 2006,
Mr. Turturica joined RSC as Vice President of Human Resources in 2005, Prior to RSC, Mr. Turturica served
as Vice President of Staffing and Associate Relations at Penske Truck Leasing from 2000 to 2005 and Vice
President of Human Resources at Detroit Diesel Corporation, an affiliate of Penske Corporation from 1994 to 2000.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge through our Internet web-site (www.RSCrental.com), our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports,
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as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material, or furnish it to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

The public may read and copy materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549, The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet web-site (http://www.sec.gov) that
contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with
the SEC.

RECENT TRANSACTIONS

The Recapitalization

Pursuant to the Recapitalization Agreement, on the Recapitalization Closing Date, the Sponsors acquired
approximately 85.5% of RSC Holdings’ common stock. In connection with the Recapitalization, we issued and sold
the Notes as well as entered into the Senior Credit Facilities.

Recapitalization Agreemeni

The Recapitalization Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and covenants. The Recap-
italization Agreement also provides that Atlas will indemnify RSC Holdings and its affiliates, including Ripple-
wood and Oak Hill, and their respective officers, directors, stockholders, employees, agents and representatives
with respect to breaches of representations, warranties, covenants and certain other matters, in each case, subject to
certain time limitations and dollar amounts, and that RSC Holdings will indemnify Atlas and their respective
affiliates and their respective officers, directors, stockholders, employees, agents and representatives with respect to
breaches of representations, warranties, covenants and certain other matters, in each case, subject to certain time
limitations and dollar amounts.

Contingent Earn-Out Notes

Pursuant to the Recapitalization Agreement, if RSC Holdings’ cumulative adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the
Recapitalization agreement) for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 had been at least
$1.54 billion, then RSC Holdings would be obligated to issue up to a $150.0 million contingent earn-out note in
April 2008. RSC Holdings’ cumulative adjusted EBITDA did not meet the defined threshold, and an earn-out note
will not be issued.

If RSC Holdings™ cumutlative adjusted EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2008 (the “2008 EBITDA”)
is at least $880 million, then on April 1, 2009, RSC Holdings will issue to Atlas a contingent earn-out note, in a
principal amount equal to:

(1)$250 million, if the 2008 EBITDA is $1.015 billion or greater;

(iiy Ifthe 2008 EBITDA is between $880 million and $1.015 billion, an amount equal to (x) $250 million
multiplied by (y) a fraction (A) the numerator of which is an amount equal to the 2008 EBITDA minus
$880 million and (B) the denominator of which is $135 million; and

(iii) Anadditional amount, computed like jnterest (compounded semiannually) at the lesser of 11.5% per
annum and the applicable federal rate plus 4.99% per annum from April I, 2009 until the contingent earn-out
note is issued, on the amount described in clause (i) or clause (ii) above, as applicable.

The contingent earn-out note would mature on the earlier of the date that is 11 years from issuance and the date
that is 6 months after the final maturity date of the longest dated debt of RSC Holdings or any of its subsidiaries with
a principal amount in excess of 3100 million outstanding on the date of issuance of the contingent earn-out note,
Interest will be added to principal semi-annually and will be payable at maturity. The interest rate will be
compounded semiannually and equal to the lesser of 11.5% per annum and the applicable federal rate plus 4.99%
per annum,.
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If certain persons associated with the Sponsors cease to control 40% in the aggregate of the number of shares of
common equity owned by such persons immediately after the closing of the Recapitalization, RSC Holdings must
make semi-annual payments of current period interest on the contingent note, subject to certain conditions.
Furthermore, additional interest under the earn-out note shall accrue at the semiannual interest rate that, with
semiannual compounding, produces an incremental annual yield to maturity of 1.50%.

Initial Public Offering

In May 2007, RSC Holdings completed an initial public offering of its common stock. The number of common
shares offered was 20,833,333, Of these shares, 12,500,000 were new shares offered by RSC Holdings and
8,333,333 were shares offered by certain of its current stockholders. RSC Holdings did not receive any of the
proceeds from the sale of the shares by the Sponsors and ACF. The common stock was offered at a price of $22.00
per share. We used the net proceeds from this offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and offering
expenses, of $255.1 million to repay $230.7 million of the Senior Term Facility, an associated prepayment penalty
of $4.6 million, and a termination fee of $20.0 million to the Sponsors related to the terminatton of the monitoring
agreement.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business is subject to a number of important risks and uncertainties, some of which are described below.
Any of these risks may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows.

Risks-Related to Our Business

Our business could be hurt by a decline in non-residential construction and industrial activities or a
decline in the amount of construction equipment that is rented.

As of December 31, 2007, our non-residential construction and industrial customers together accounted for
approximately 95% of our rental revenues. A weakness in non-residential construction or industrial activity, or a
decline in the desirability of renting equipment, may decrease the demand for our equipment or depress the prices
we charge for our products and services. We have identified below certain factors which may cause weakness, either
temporary or long-term, in the non-residential construction and industrial sectors:

« weakness in the economy or the onset of a recession;

« an increase in the cost of construction materials;

» an increase in interest rates;

« adverse weather conditions or natural disasters; or

» terrorism or hostilities involving the United States or Canada.

A weakness in the non-residential construction and industrial sectors caused by these or other factors could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial conditions, results of operations and cash fiows and may
have a material adverse effect on residual values realized on the disposition of our rental equipment.

We face intense competition that may lead to our inability to increase or maintain our prices, which could
have a material adverse impact on our results of operations.

The equipment rental industry is highly competitive and highly fragmented. Many of the markets in which we
operate are served by numerous competitors, ranging from national equipment rental companies, like ourselves, to
smaller mulii-regional companies and small, independent businesses with a limited number of locations. See
“Business — Competition.” Some of our principal competitors are less leveraged than we are, have greater financial
resources, may be more geographically diversified, may have greater name recognition than we do and may be
better able to withstand adverse market conditions within the industry. We generally compete on the basis of, among
other things, quality and breadth of service, expertise, reliability, price and the size, mix and relative attractiveness
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of our rental equipment fleet, which is significantly affected by the level of our capital expenditures. If we are
required to reduce or delay capital expenditures for any reason, including due o restrictions contained in the Senior
Credit Facilities, or the indenture governing the Notes, the aging of our rental fleet may place us at a disadvantage
compared to our competitors and adversely impact our pricing. In addition, our competitors may seek to compete
aggressively on the basis of pricing. To the extent that we choose to match our competitors’ downward pricing, it
could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations. To the extent that we choose not to match or
remain within a reasonable competitive distance from our competitors’ pricing, it could also have a material adverse
impact on our results of operations, as we may lose rental volume.

We may also encounter increased competition from existing competitors or new market entrants in the future,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
Qur revenues and operating results may fluctuate and ony unexpected periods of decline eould have a

material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our revenues and operating results have varied historically from period to period and may continue to do so.
We have identified below certain of the factors which may cause our revenues and operating results to vary:

¢ changes in demand for our equipment or the prices we charge due to changes in economic conditions,
competition or other factors;

the timing of expenditures for new equipment and the disposal of used equipment;
* changes in the interest rates applicable to our variable rate debt;
» general economic conditions in the markets where we operate;

 the cyclical nature of our customers’ businesses, particularly those operating in the non-residential
construction and industrial sectors;

* price changes in response to competitive factors;

« scasonal rental patterns, with rental activity tending to be lowest in the winter;

timing of acquisitions and new location openings and related costs;

* labor shortages, work stoppages or other labaor difficulties;

*» possible unrecorded liabilities of acquired companies;

+ our effectiveness in integrating acquired businesses and new locations into our existing operations; and

+ possible write-offs or exceptional charges due to changes in applicable accounting standards, impairment of
obsolete or damaged equipment or other assets, or the refinancing of our existing debt.

One or a number of these factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Our expenses could increase and our relationships with our customers could be hurt if there is an adverse
change in our relationships with our equipment suppliers or if our suppliers are unable to provide us with
products we rely on to generate revenues,

All of our rental equipment consists of products that we purchase from various suppliers and mamifacturers,
We rely on these suppliers and manufacturers to provide us with equipment which we then rent to our customers. We
have not entered into any long-term equipment supply arrangements with manufacturers. To the extent we are
unable to rely on these suppliers and manufacturers, either due to an adverse change in our relationships with them,
or if they significantly raised their costs, or such suppliers or manufacturers simply are unable to supply us with
equipment in a timely manner, our business could be adversely affected through higher costs or the resulting
potential inability to Service our customers. We may experience delays in receiving equipment from some
manufacturers due to factors beyond our control, including raw material shortages, and, to the extent that we
experience any such delays, our business could be hurt by the resulting inability to service our customers. In
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addition, while we have negotiated favorable payment terms with the suppliers that provide us with the majority of
our equipment, these payment terms may not be available to us at a later time.

If our operating costs increase as our rental fleet ages and we are unable to pass along such costs, our
earnings will decrease.

As our fleet of rental equipment ages, the cost of maintaining such equipment, if not replaced within a certain
period of time, will likely increase. The costs of maintenance may materially increase in the future. Any material
increase in such costs could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The cost of new equipment we use in our rental fleet is increasing and therefore we may spend more for
replacement equipment, and in some cases we may not be able to procure equipment on a fimely basis
due to supplier constraints. .

The cost of new equipment used in our rental fleet increased in 2005, 2006 and 2007. These cost increases are
due primarily to increased material costs, including increases in the cost of steel, whichis a primary material used in
most of the equipment we use, and increases in the cost of fuel, which is used in the manufacturing process and in
delivering equipment to us. Although these increases did not have a significant impact on our financial conditions
and results of operations in the last fiscal year, these increases could materially adversely impact our financial
condition and results of operations in future periods.

Our rental fleet is subject to residual value risk upon disposition.

The market value of any given piece of rental equipment could be less than its depreciated value at the time itis
sold. The market value of used rental equipment depends on several factors, including:

« the market price for new equipment of a like kind;

« wear and tear on the equipment relative to its age and the performance of preventive maintenance;

the time of year that it is sold;
» worldwide and domestic demand for used equipment; and
« general economic conditions.

We include in income from operations the difference between the sales price and the depreciated value of an
item of equipment sold. Changes in our assumptions regarding depreciation could change both our depreciation
expense as well as the gain or loss reatized upon disposal of equipment. Sales of our used rental equipment at prices
that fall significantly below our projections, or our inability to sell such equipment at all, could have a negative
impact on our results of operations.

Our reliance on available borrowings under our Senior ABL Facilities and cash from operating activities
to purchase new equipment subjects us to a number of risks, many of which are beyond our control.

We rely significantly on available borrowings under our Senior ABL Facilities to purchase equipment. As of
December 31, 2007, we had $474.0 million of available borrowings under the revolving credit portion of our Senior
ABL Facilities. If our access to such financing were unavailable, reduced, or were to become significantly more
expensive for any reason, including, without limitation, due to our inability to meet the coverage ratio or leverage
ratio tests in our Senior ABL Facilities or to satisfy any other condition in the facilities or due to an increase in
interest rates generally, we may not be able to finance new equipment acquisitions on favorable terms, or at all. In
addition, if we are unable to generate excess cash from operating activities after servicing our debt due to negative
economic or industry trends including, among others, those set forth above under “— Our business could be hurt by
a decline in non-residential construction and industrial activities or a decline in the amount of construction
equipment that is rented” and “— We face intense competition that may lead to downward pricing, or an inability to
increase prices, which could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations,” and we are not able to
finance new equipment acquisitions, we may not be able to make necessary equipment rental acquisitions at all.
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Any failure of ACAB and ACF to indemnify us against and defend us from certain claims in accordance
with the terms of the Recapitalization Agreement could have a material adverse effect on us,

Pursuant to the Recapitalization Agreement, and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, ACAB and
ACF have agreed to indemnify RSC Holdings and its subsidiaries against and defend us from all losses, including
costs and reasonable expenses, resulting from certain claims related to the Recapitalization, our business and our
former businesses including, without limitation: claims alleging exposure to silica and asbestos; the transfer of
certain businesses owned by RSC Holdings but not acquired by the Sponsors in connection with the Recapital-
ization; certain employee-related matters; any activities, operations or business conducted by RSC Holdings or any
of its affiliates other than our business; and certain tax matters. ACAB’s and ACF’s indemnity for claims related to
alleged exposure to silica entitles us to coverage for one-half of all silica related losses until the aggregate amount of
such losses equals $10 million and to coverage for such losses in excess of $10 million until the aggregate amount of
such losses equals $35 million. ACAB’s and ACF’s general indemnity for breach of representations and warranties
related to our business covers aggregate losses in excess of $33 million, excluding any individual loss of less than
$75,000, and the maximum we can recover is 20% of the recapitalization purchase price set forth in the
Recapitalization Agreement, or the Recapitalization Purchase Price, as adjusted in accordance with the Recap-
italization Agreement. Furthermore, ACAB and ACF may not have sufficient assets, income and access to financing
to enable them to satisfy their indemnification obligations under the Recapitalization Agreement or to continue to
honor those obligations, If ACAB or ACF do not satisty or otherwise honor their obligations, we may be forced to
bear the losses described above. Any failure by ACAB or ACF to perform these obligations could have a material
adverse effect on us,

Disruptions in our information technology systems could limit our ability to effectively monitor and con-
trol our operations and adversely affect our operating results.

Our information technology systems facilitate our ability to monitor and control our operations and adjust to
changing market conditions. Any disruptions in these systems or the failure of these systems to operate as expected
could, depending on the magnitude of the problem, materially adversely affect our financial condition or operating
results by limiting our capacity to effectively monitor and control our operations and adjust to changing market
conditions in a timely manner. In addition, because our systems contain information about individuals and
businesses, our failure to maintain the security of the data we hold, whether the result of our own error or the
malfeasance or errors of others, could harm our reputation or give rise to legal liabilities leading to lower revenues,
increased costs and other material adverse effects on our results of operations,

The Sponsors or their affiliates may compete directly against us.

Corporate opportunitigs may arise in the area of potential competitive business activities that may be attractive
to us as well as to one or more of the Sponsors or their affiliates, including through potential acquisitions by one or
more Sponsors or their affiliates of competing businesses. Any competition could intensify if an affiliate or
subsidiary of one or more of the Sponsors were to enter into or acquire a business similar to our equipment rental
operations. Given that we are not controlled by any one of the Sponsors, the Sponsors and their affiliates may be
inclined to direct relevant corporate. opportunities to entities which they control individually rather than to us. In
addition, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will provide that the Sponsors are under no
obligation to communicate or offer any corporate opportunity to us, even if such opportunity might reasonably have
been expected to be of interest to us or our subsidiaries. See Item 13 of this Annual Report entitled “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence™ for additional information.

ACAB may compete against us in the future.

Certain affiliates of ACAB are participants in the equipment rental industry. In addition, following the
expiration of a non-compete provision in the Recapitalization Agreement two years following November 27, 2006,
or the Recapitalization Closing Date, ACAB and its affiliates will be free to compete with us in the rental equipment
industry in the United States and Canada. In addition, nothing in the Recapitalization Agreement prohibits ACAB
and its affiliates from (i) conducting (a) any business they conducted immediately prior to closing, including the
operation of the Prime Energy division’s oil-free compressor equipment rental and sales business, which was
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transferred to an affiliate of ACAB, (b) the business of selling, renting (as long as such renting is not in competition
with our business) and leasing products they manufacture, or selling used equipment, (c) the rental equipment
business outside of the United States and Canada, (ii) investing in or holding not more than 10% of the outstanding
capital stock of an entity that competes with us or (iii) acquiring and continuing to own and operate an entity that
competes with us, provided the rental revenues of such entity in the United States and Canada account for no more
than 20% of such entity’s consolidated revenues at the time of such acquisition. Therefore, notwithstanding the non-
compete provision of the Recapitalization Agreement, ACAB and its affiliates may, to the extent described above,
compete against us.

If we acquire any businesses in the future, they could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, or
have an adverse effect on our resulls of operations. .

We intend to pursue growth primarily through internal growth, but from time to time we may consider
opportunistic acquisitions, which may be significant. Any future acquisition would involve numerous risks
including, without limitation:

» potential disruption of our ongoing business and distraction of management;
» difficulty integrating the acquired business; and
+ exposure to unknown liabilities, including litigation against the companies we may acquire.

If we make acquisitions in the future, acquisition-related accounting charges may affect our balance sheet and
results of operations. In addition, the financing of any significant acquisition may result in changes in our capital
structure, including the incurrence of additional indebtedness. We may not be successful in addressing these risks or
any other problems encountered in connection with any acquisitions.

If we fail to retain key management and personnel, we may be unable to implement our business plan.

One of the most important factors in our ability to profitably execute our business plan is our ability to attract,
develop and retain qualified personnel, including our CEO and operational management. Our success in attracting
and retaining qualified people is dependent on the resources available in individual geographic areas and the impact
on the labor supply due to general economic conditions as well as our ability to provide a competitive compensation
package and work environment.

.

We are exposed to various possible claims relating to our business and our insurance may not fully pro-
tect us.

We are exposed to various possible claims relating to our business. These possible claims include those relating
to (1) personal injury or death caused by equipment rented or sold by us, (2) motor vehicle accidents involving our
vehicles and our employees, (3) employment-related claims, {4} property damage and pollution related claims and
{5) commercial claims. Our insurance policies have deductibles or self-insured retentions of $1 million for general
liability and $1.5 million for automobile liability, on a per occurrence basis; $500,000 per occurrence for workers’
compensation claims; and $250,000 per occurrence for pollution coverage. Currently, we believe that we have
adequate insurance coverage for the protection of our assets and operations. However, our insurance may not fully
protect us for certain types of claims, such as claims for punitive damages or for damages arising from intentional
misconduct, which are often alleged in third party lawsuits. In addition, we may be exposed to uninsured liability at
levels in excess of our policy limits,

If we are found liable for any significant claims that are not covered by insurance, our liquidity and operating
results could be materially adversely affected. It is possible that our insurance carrier may disclaim coverage for any
class action and derivative lawsuits against us. It is also possible that some or all of the insurance that is currently
available to us will not be available in the future on economically reasonable terms or not available at all.
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We may be unable to establish and/or maintain an effective system of internal control over financial
reporting and comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other related provisions of
the U.S. securities laws,

We are required to file certain reports, including annual and quarterly periodic reports, under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. The Commission, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, adopied
rules requiring every public company to include a management report on such company’s internal control over
financial reporting in its annual report, which contains management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting. In addition, commencing in our Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2008, an independent registered public accounting firm must report on the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting, Qur reporting obligations under the U.S. securities laws placed additional
burdens on our management, operational and financial resources and systems. To the extent that we are unable to
establish and/or maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and/or disclosure controls and
procedures, we may be unable to produce reliable financial reports and/or public disclosure, detect and prevent
fraud and comply with our reporting obligations under the U.S. securities laws on a timely basis. Any such failure
could harm our business. In addition, failure to achieve and maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting and/or disclosure controls and procedures could result in the loss of investor confidence in the reliability
of our financial statements and public disclosure and a loss of customers, which in turn could harm our business.

Environmental, health and safety laws, regulations and requirements and the costs of complying with
them, or any lability or obligation imposed under them, could adversely affect our financial position,
results of operations or cash flow,

Our operations are subject to a variety of federal, state, local and foreign envirenmental, health and safety laws
and regulations. These laws regulate releases of petroleum products and other hazardous substances into the
environment as well as storage, treatment, transport and disposal of wastes, and the remediation of soil and
groundwater contamination. In addition, certain of our customers require us to maintain certain safety levels.
Failure to maintain such levels could lead to a loss of such customers.

These laws also regulate our ownership and operation of tanks used for the storage of petroleum products and
other regulated substances.

We have made, and will continue to make, expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations,
including, among others, expenditures for the investigation and cleanup of contamination at or emanating from,
currently and formerly owaed and leased properties, as well as contamination at other locations at which our wastes
have reportedly been identified. Some of these laws impose strict and in certain circumstances joint and several
liability on current and former owners or operators of contaminated sites for costs of investigation and remediation.

In addition, as global warming issues become more prevalent, federal, state and local governments, as well as
foreign governments, may begin to respond to these issues with increased regulations that could negatively affect
us, our suppliers and our customers. This may cause us to incur additional direct costs in complying with any new
environmental regulations, as well as increased indirect costs resulting from our suppliers, customers, or both
incurring additional compliance costs that could get passed through to us.

Compliance with existing or future environmental, health and safety requirements may require material
expenditures by us or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flow.

We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights that are
material te our business,

Our ability to compete effectively depends in part upon our rights in trademarks, copyrights and other
intellectual property rights we own or license, including proprietary software. Qur use of contractual provisions,
confidentiality procedures and agreements, and trademark, copyright, unfair competition, trade secret and other
laws to protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights may not be adequate. Litigation may be
necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights and protect our proprietary information, or to defend against
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claims by third parties that our services or our use of intellectual property infringe their intellectual property rights.
Any litigation or claims brought by or against us could result in substantial costs and diversion of our resources. A
successful claim of trademark, copyright or other intellectual property infringement against us could prevent us
from providing services, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Certain of our existing stockholders have significant control.

As of December 31, 2007, our Sponsors each beneficially owned approximately 34% of the outstanding shares
of our common stock, which results in our being a closely controlled company with the Sponsors having significant
influence over: (1) the election of our Board of Directors; (2) the approval or disapproval of any other matters
requiring stockholder approval; and (3) the affairs, policy and direction of our business. Ripplewood, Oak Hili, ACF
and RSC Holdings are parties to a stockholders agreement, or the Stockholders Agreement, pursuant to which the
Sponsors currently have the ability to cause the election of a majority of our Board of Directors. Under the terms of
the Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement, the Sponsors have the right to nominate a majority of the
members of our Board of Directors and to exercise control over matters requiring stockholder approval and our
policy and affairs, for example, by being able to direct the use of proceeds received from this and future security
offerings. In addition, we are a “‘controlled company” within the meaning of the New York Stock Exchange rules
and, as a result, we currently rely on exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements.

The concentrated holdings of the Sponsors, certain provisions of the Amended and Restated Stockholders
Agreement and the presence of the Sponsors’ nominees on our Board of Directors may result in a delay or the
deterrence of possible changes in control of our company, which may reduce the market price of our common stock.
The interests of our existing stockholders may conflict with the interests of our other stockholders.

We face risks related to changes in our ownership.

Certain of our agreements with third parties, including our real property leases, require the consent of such
parties in connection with any change in ownership of us. We will generally seek such consents and waivers,
although we may not seek certain consents if our not obtaining them will not, in our view, have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations. If we fail to obtain any required consent or
waiver, the applicable third parties could seek to terminate their agreement with us and, as a result, our ability to
conduct our business could be impaired until we are able to enter into replacement agreements, resulting in a
material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

We have substantial debt and may incur substantial additional debt, which could adversely affect our
financial condition, our ability to obtain financing in the future and our ability to react to changes in our
business.

We have a significant amount of debt. As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $2,736.2 million of
debt outstanding.

Our substantial debt could have important consequences. For example, it could:

» make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations to the holders of our Notes and to the lenders under our
Senior Credit Facilities, resulting in possible defaults on and acceleration of such indebtedness;

» require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to make payments on our debt,
which would reduce the availability of our cash flow from operations to fund working capital, capital
expenditures or other general corporaie purposes;

» increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions, including interest rate
fluctuations, because a portion of our borrowings, including under the Senior Credit Facilities, is at variable
rates of interest;
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* place us at a competitive disadvantage to our competitors with propoertionately less debt or comparable debt
at more favorable interest rates;

+ limit our ability to refinance our existing indebtedness or borrow additional funds in the future;
» limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changing conditions in our business and industry; and

* limit our ability to react to competitive pressures, or make it difficult for us to carry out capital spending that
is necessary or important to our growth strategy and our efforts to improve operating margins.

Any of the foregoing impacts of our substantial indebtedness could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Despite our current indebtedness levels, we and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial addi-
tional debt, which could further exacerbate the risks associated with our substantial indebtedness.

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. The terms of the
instruments governing our indebtedness do not prohibit us or fully prohibit us or our subsidiaries from doing so. Qur
Senior Credit Facilities provided us commitments for additional aggregate borrowings subject to, among other
things, our maintenance of a sufficient borrowing base under such facilities. Both the Senior ABL Facilities and the
Senior Term Facility permit additional borrowings beyond the committed firancing under certain circumstances. If
new debt is added to our current debt levels, the related risks that we now face would increase. In addition, the
instruments governing our indebtedness do not prevent us or our subsidiaries from incurring obligations that do not
constitute indebtedness.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our debt, and may be forced to take other
actions to satisfy our obligations under such indebtedness, which may not be successful.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or to refinance our obligations under, our debt will depend on our
financial and operating performance and that of our subsidiaries, which, in turn, will be subject to prevailing
economic¢ and competitive conditions and to the financial and business factors, many of which may be beyond our
control. See the table under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations ~ Liquidity and Capital Resources — Contractual Obligations™ for disclosure regarding the amount of
cash required to service our debt.

We miy not maintain a level of cash flow from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal,
premium, if any, and interest on our indebtedness. If our cash flow and capital resources are insufficient to fund our
debt service obligations, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets, seek to obtain
additional equity capital or restructure our debt. In the future, our cash flow and capital resources may not be
sufficient for payments of interest on and principal of our debt, and such alternative measures may not be successful
and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. We may not be able to refinance any of our
indebtedness or obtain additional financing, particularly because of our anticipated high levels of debt and the debt
incurrence restrictions imposed by the agreements governing our debi, as well as prevailing market conditions. In
the absence of such operating results and resources, we could face substantial liquidity probtems and might be
required to dispose of material assets or operations to meet our debt service and other obligations. The instruments
governing our indebtedness restrict our ability to dispose of assets and use the proceeds from any such dispositions.
We may not be able to consummate those sales, or if we do, at an opportune timing, or the proceeds that we realize
may not be adequate to meet debt service obligations when due.

A significant portion of our outstanding indebtedness is secured by substantially all of our consolidated
assets. As a result of these security interests, such assets would only be available to satisfy claims of our
general creditors or to holders of our equity securities if we were to become insolvent to the extent the
value of such assets exceeded the amount of our indebtedness and other obligations. In addition, the
existence of these security interests may adversely affect our financial flexibility.

Indebtedness under our Senior Credit Facilities is secured by a lien on substantially all cur assets. Accordingly,
if an event of default were to occur under our Senior Credit Facilities, the senior secured lenders under such
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facilities would have a prior right to our assets, to the exclusion of our general creditors. In that event, our assets
would first be used to repay in full all indebtedness and other obligations secured by them (including all amounts
outstanding under our Senior Credit Facilities), resulting in all or a portion of our assets being unavailable to satisfy
the claims of our unsecured indebtedness, including our Notes. Only after satisfying the ¢laims of our unsecured
creditors and our subsidiaries’ unsecured creditors would any amount be available for our equity holders.

As of December 31, 2007, substantially all of our consolidated assets, including our equipment rental fleets,
have been pledged for the benefit of the lenders under our Senior Credit Facilities. As a result, the lenders under
these facilities would have a prior claim on such assets in the event of our bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or
reorganization, and we may not have sufficient funds to pay alt of our creditors. In that event, holders of our equity
securities would not be entitled to receive any of our assets or the proceeds there from. As discussed below, the
pledge of these assets and other restrictions may limit our flexibility in raising capital for other purposes. Because
substantially all of our assets are pledged under these financing arrangements, our ability to incur additional secured
indebtedness or to sell or dispose of assets to raise capital may be impaired, which could have an adverse effect on
our financial flexibility.

Restrictive covenants in certain of the agreements and instruments governing our indebtedness may
adversely affect our financial flexibility.

Our Senior Credit Facilities contain covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability to:

« incur additional indebtedness or provide guarantees;

* engage in mergers, acquisitions or dispositions;

= enter into sale-leaseback transactions;

» make dividends and other restricted payments;

» prepay other indebtedness;

« engage in certain transactions with affiliates;

» make other investments;

« change the nature of our business;

* incur liens;

* take actions other than those enumerated; and

» amend specified debt agreements.

in addition, under the Senior ABL Facilities, if we fail to maintain a specified minimum level of botrowing
capacity, we will then be subject to financial covenants, including covenants that will obligate us to maintain a
specified leverage ratio and a specified fixed charges coverage ratio. Our ability to comply with these covenants in
future periods will depend on our ongoing financial and operating performance, which in turn will be subject to
economic conditions and to financial, market and competitive factors, many of which are beyond our control. Qur
ability to comply with these covenants in future periods will also depend substantially on the pricing of our products
and services, our success at implementing cost reduction initiatives and our ability to successfully implement our
overall business strategy. :

The indenture governing the Notes also contains restrictive covenants that, among other things, limit our
ability and the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to:

« incur additional debt;
« pay dividends or distributions on their capital stock or repurchase their capital stock;
* make certain investments;

« create liens on their assets to secure debt;
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* enter into certain transactions with affiliates;

» create limitations on the ability of the restricted subsidiaries to make dividends or distributions to their
respective parents,

» merge or consolidate with another company; and
» transfer and sell assets.

Qur ability to comply with the covenants and restrictions contained in the Senior Credit Facilities and the
indenture governing the Notes may be affected by economic, financial and industry conditions beyond our control.
The breach of any of these covenants or restrictions could result in a default under either the Senior Credit Facilities
or the indenture that would permit the applicable lenders or noteholders, as the case may be, to declare all amounts
outstanding thereunder to be due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid interest. In any such case, we may
be unable to make borrowings under the Senior Credit Facilities and may not be able to repay the amounts due under
the Senior Credit Facilities and the Notes. This could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations and could cause us to become bankrupt or insoivent.

The instruments governing our debt contain cross default or cross acceleration provisions that may cause
all of the debt issued under such instruments to become immediately due and payable as a result of a
default under an unrelated debt instrument.

Our failure to comply with the obligations contained in the indenture governing our Notes and the agreements
governing our Senior Credit Facilities or other instruments governing our indebtedness could result in an event of
default under the applicable instrument, which could result in the related debt and the debt issued under other
instruments becoming immediately due and payable. In such event, we would need to raise funds from alternative
sources, which funds may not be available to us on favorable terms, on a timely basis or at all. Alternatively, such a
default could require us to sell our assets and otherwise curtail our operations in order to pay our creditors. Such
alternative measures could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Risks Related to our Common Stock and Market and Economic Factors

RSC Holdings is a holding company with no operations of its own that depends on its subsidiaries for
cash.

The operations of RSC Holdings are conducted almost entirely through its subsidiaries and its ability to
generate cash to meet its debt service obligations or to pay dividends is highly dependent on the earnings and the
receipt of funds from its subsidiaries via dividends or intercompany loans. However, none of the subsidiaries of RSC
Holdings is obligated to make funds available to RSC Holdings for the payment of dividends. In addition, payments
of dividends and interest among the companies in our group may be subject to withholding taxes. Further, the
indenture governing the Notes and the Senior Credit Facilities significantly restrict the ability of the subsidiaries of
RSC Holdings to pay dividends or otherwise transfer assets to RSC Holdings. See “Risk Factors — Risks Related to
Our Substantial Indebtedness — Restrictive covenants in certain of the agreements and instruments governing our
indebtedness may adversely affect our financial flexibility.” In addition, Delaware law may impose requirerments
that may restrict our ability to pay dividends to holders of our common stock.

Our aperating and financial performance in any given period might not meet the guidance we have
provided to the public.

. We provide public guidance on our expected operating and financial results for future periods. Although we
believe that this guidance provides investors and analysts with a better understanding of management’s expectations
for the future, and is useful to our stockholders and potential stockholders, such guidance is comprised of forward-
looking statements subject to the risks and uncertainties described in this report and in our other public filings and
public statements. Actual results may differ from the projected guidance. If in the future, our operating or financial
results for a particular period do not meet our guidance or the expectations of investment analysts, or if we reduce
our guidance for future periods, the market price of our common stock could significantly decline.
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Fluctuations in the stock market, as well as general economic and market conditions may impact our
operations, sales, financial results and market price of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock has been and may continue to be subject to significant fluctuations in
response to operating results and other factors including, but not limited to:

+ general economic changes, including rising interest rates, increased fuel costs and other energy costs;
increased labor and healthcare costs, and increased levels of unemployment;

= variations in quarterly operating results;
« changes in the strategy and actions taken by our competitors, including pricing changes;

« securities analysts elections to discontinue coverage of our common stock, changes in financial estimates by
analysts or a downgrade of our stock or our sector by analysts;

+ announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint
ventures or capital commitments;

¢ loss of a large customer or supplier;

+ future sales of our common stock;

+ investor perceptions of us and the equipment rental industry;

« our ability to successfully integrate acquisitions and consolidations; and

» national or regional catastrophes or circumstances and natural disasters, hostilities and acts of terrorism.

These broad market and industry factors may materially reduce the market price of our common stock,
regardless of our operating performance. In addition, the stock market in recent years has experienced price and
volume fluctuations that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies.
These fluctuations, as well as general economic and market conditions, including but not limited to those listed
above, may harm the market price of our common stock.

Our share price may decline due to the large number of shares eligible for future sale.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock, or the possibility of such sales by our executive officers,
directors, or Sponsors or other large stock holders, may adversely affect the price of our common stock and impede
our ability to raise capital through the issuance of equity securitics. As of December 31, 2007, our executive
officers, directors and Sponsors beneficially held approximately 68% of our common stock.

In addition, sales of our common stock that result in certain persons associated with the Sponsors holding less
than 40% in the aggregate of the number of shares of our common stock held by them on the Recapitalization
Closing Date will result in requiring us to pay current interest on any contingent earn-out note that we may issue.
See “Recent Transactions — The Recapitalization — Contingent Earn-Out Notes.”

Our certificate of incorporation, by-laws and Delaware law may discourage takeovers and business
combinations that our stockholders might consider in their best interests.

A number of provisions in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may have the effect of delaying,
deterring, preventing or rendering more difficult a change in control of RSC Holdings that our stockholders might
consider in their best interests. These provisions include:

» establishment of a classified Board of Directors, with staggered terms;

» granting to the Board of Directors sole power to set the number of directors and to fill any vacancy on the
Board of Directors, whether such vacancy occurs as a result of an increase in the number of directors or
otherwise;

* limitations on the ability of stockholders to remove directors;
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s the ability of the Board of Directors to designate and issue one or more series of preferred stock without
stockholder approval, the terms of which may be determined at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors;

« prohibition on stockholders from calling special meetings of stockholders;

* establishment of advance notice requirementis for stockhelder proposals and nominations for election to the
Board of Directors at stockholder meetings; and

* prohibiting ourstockholders from acting by written consent if the Sponsors cease 1o collectively hold a
majority of our outstanding common stock.

These provisions may prevent our stockholders from receiving the benefit from any premium to the market
price of our common stock offered by a bidder in a takeover context. Even in the absence of a takeover attempt, the
existence of these provisions may adversely affect the prevailing market price of our common stock if they are
viewed as discouraging takeover attempts in the future. In addition, we have opted out of Section 203 of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, which would have otherwise imposed additional requirements regarding
mergers and other business combinations.

Our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may also make it difficult for stockholders to replace or remove
our management. These provisions may facilitate management entrenchment that may delay, deter, render more
difficult or prevent a change in our control, which may not be in the best interests of our stockholders.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2007, we operated through a network of 473 rental locations. Of these locations, 452 were
in the United States and 21 were in Canada. As of December 31, 2006, we operated 455 rental locations. Of these
locations, 435 were in the United States and 20 were in Canada. We lease the real estate for all but four of our
locations. The majority of our leases are for five year terms with renewal options.

Our rental locations are generally situated in industrial or commercial zones. The typical location is
approximately 7,500 square feet in size, located on approximately 2.0 acres and incledes a customer service
center, an cquipment service area and storage facilities for equipment. We have expanded our network of equipment
rental locations in 2007, adding 21 new locations, 1 of which is in Canada, while closing 3 locations in the United
States. Our corporate headquarters are located in Scottsdale, Arizona, where we occupy approximately
44,825 square feet under a lease that expires in 2013,

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to legal proceedings and potential claims arising in the ordinary course of our business, including
claims related to employment matters, contractual disputes, personal injuries and property damage. In addition,
various legal actions, claims and governmental inquiries and proceedings are pending or may be instituted or
asserted in the future against us and our subsidiaries.

Litigation is subject to many uncertaintics, and the outcome of the individual litigated matters is not
predictable with assurance. It is possible that certain of the actions, claims, inquiries or proceedings, including
those discussed above, could be decided unfavorably to us or any of our subsidiaries involved. Although we cannot
predict with certainty the ultimate resolution of lawsuits, investigations and claims asserted against us, we do not
believe that any current pending legal proceedings to which we are a party will have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information

Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on May 23, 2007. As of March 7, 2008
there were 39 holders of record under the trading symbol “RRR” of the common stock. We believe that the number
of beneficial owners is substantially greater than the number of record holders because a portion of our common
stock is held of record in broker “street names”.

4

The following table sets forth the high and low sales price for the periods presented:
For the Year Ending December 31, 2007 (commencing May 23, 2007)

High Low
Second QUAITET. . ...ttt e e e e e $21.75 $17.91
Third QUarter . . ... ... i it e e s 22.26 15.60
Fourth Quarter .. ........ ittt i i e 17.51 10.00

There were no repurchases of our equity securities by us or on our behalf subsequent to May 23, 2007.

Dividends

We do not have a formal dividend policy, The Board of Directors periodically considers the advisability of
declaring and paying dividends in light of existing circumstances. Our ability to pay dividends to holders of our
common stock is limited as a practical matter by the Senior Credit Facilities and the indenture governing the Notes,
insofar as we may seek to pay dividends out of funds made available to us, because our subsidiaries’ debt facilities
directly or indirectly restrict our subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends or make loans to us.

Dividends of $8.0 million, and $16.0 million were declared and paid on the Series A Preferred Stock in the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Series A Preferred Stock was retired in connection with
the Recapitalization.
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Recent Performance

Stock Performance Graph. The performance graph and related information shall not be deemed “filed” with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future
filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended except to the extent that
we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholders return on RSC Holdings Inc. common stock
with the Russell 2000 index and a peer group. The peer group consists of 17 companies that have the same standard
industrial classification code (“SIC”) as the Company. The SIC code description is 7359 — services-miscellaneous
equipment rental & leasing. The results are based on an assumed $100 invested on May 23, 2007, the day our
common stock began trading or April 30, 2007 in the index, including reinvestment of dividends, through
December 31, 2007.

COMPARISON OF 7 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among RSC Holdings Inc. The Russell 2000 Index And A Peer Group
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—B—RSC Holdings Inc — -A— Russell 2000 - - G - - Peer Group

* $100 invested on 5/23/07 in stock or 4/30/07 in index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright® 2008, Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes the securities authorized for issuance pursuant to our equity compensation
plans as of December 31, 2007:

Number of
Securities
Number of Remaining Available
Securities to Be for Future Issuance
Issued Upon Weighted-Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Outstanding Outstanding {Excluding
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Securities Reflected
and Rights and Rights in Column (1))
Plan Category (a)} (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders(1). . ........ oo 7,382,943 $7.58 1,488,543
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders . . ... .o i e — — —
Total ... e e 7,382,943 $7.58 1,488,543

|

(1) Represents the RSC Holdings Inc. Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected consolidated financial information and other operational data for our
business. The selected consolidated statements of income data presented below for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2007, 2006, 20035 and 2004, have
been derived from our audited financial statements. The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31,
2003 has been derived from our unaudited consolidated balance sheet for that period

You should read the following information in conjunction with Item 7 of this Annual Report entitled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and the consclidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2606 2005 2004 2003
($ in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated statements of income data:

Revenues:
Equipment rental revenue .. .......... $1,543.175 $1,368.712  $1,140,329 5 984517 $ 899203
Sale of merchandise ................ 80,649 92,524 102,894 162,720 178,374
Sale of used rental equipment . ... ... .. 145,358 191,652 217,534 181,486 140,424

Total revenues. .. ................... 1,769,182 1,652,888 1,460,757 1,328,723 1,218,001

Cost of revenues:
Cost of equipment rentals, excluding

depreciation .................... 642,199 591,340 527,208 492,323 494,056
Depreciation - rental equipment , . . .. .. 295,248 253,379 212,325 192,323 187,859
Cost of sales of merchandise . ......... 49,304 57,636 69,914 122,873 138,056
Cost of rental equipment sales . ... ... .. 103,076 145,425 173,276 147,131 110,458

Total cost of revenues . .. ............. 1,089,827 1,047,780 982,723 954,650 930,429
Grossprofit . ....................... 679,355 605,108 478,034 374,073 287,572
Other operating expenses:
Selling, general, and administrative . .. .. 155,263 134967 - 122,281 118,130 128,044
Management fees and recapitalization
expenses(I){(2). .................. 23,000 10,836 — — —
Depreciation and amortization — non-
rental equipment . . ............... 46,226 38,783 33,776 32,641 32,320
Total operating expenses . .. .......... 224,489 184,586 156,057 150,771 160,364
Operating income . . .. ............... 454,866 420,522 321,977 223,302 127,208
Interest expense, net(3y. ... ............ 253,478 116,37G 64,280 45,666 54,983
Otherincome, net. ................ou.. (1,126} 3l (100) (58) {119)
Income before provisions for income taxes. . 202,514 304,463 257,797 177,694 72,344
Provision for income taxes . ............ 79,260 117,941 93,600 66,717 26,437
Netincome ... ..................... $ 123,254 3 186,522 § 164,197 $ 110,977 § 45907
Preferred dividends. . . ............... " — (1,997) (15,995) {15,995) (3,999
Net income available for common

stockholders . .. ................... $ 123,254 % 178,525 . % 148202 § 94982 $ 41,908

Weighted average shares outslanding used in
computing net income per common share:

Basic(5). . ... ... . i il 98,237 307,845 330,697 330,697 330,697(4)
Diluted(5) ........... ... .. ... ...... 99,632 307,845 330,697 330,697 330,697(4)
Net income per common share: ,
Basic(6)........... ... . ... . . ... $ 125 § 058 § 045 § 029 § 0.i3
Diluted(6) ......................... $ 124 % 058 § 045 % 020 § 0.13
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Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
($ in thousands)

Other financial data:

Depreciation of rental equipment and
depreciation and amortization of

non-rental equipment. .. ......... $ 341,474 % 292,162 § 246,101 § 224964 $ 220,179
Capital expenditures:

Rental . ...................... $ 580,194 % 721,258 $ 691,858 § 419900 § 243,777

Non-remtad. .. ................. 20,674 28,592 4,641 33,490 9,727

Proceeds from sales of used
equipment and non-rental

eqUIpMENt . ... ... (156,678) (207,613) (233,731) (215,622) (146,956)

Net capital expenditures . ......... $ 444,190 § 542237 3§ 462,768 0§ 237,768 3 106,548
Other operational data (unaudited): -
Utilization(7) . ........... ... ... 72.8% 72.0% 70.6% 67.7% 63.9%
Average fleet age (months) . ........ 26 25 30 40 44
Same store rental revenues

growth(8 . ................... 11.1% 18.9% 17.6% 11.8% 0.9%
Employees(9) .. ................. 5.486 5,187 4,938 4,812 5,083
Original equipment fleet cost (in

millions)(10). ... ........ ... ... $ 2670 $ 2346 § 1,97 § 1,754 § 1,742
Consolidated balance sheet data:
Rental equipment, net . . ........... $1,929,514  $1,738,670 $1,420,545  $1,127481  $1,045,574
Total assets.........c..cvvenunn. 3,460,337 3,325,956 2,764,431 2,421,674 2,330,297
Debt...... ... 2,736,225 3,006,426 1,246,829 1,277,305 1,428,614
Total liabilities . ................. 3,504,435 3,760,589 1,950,625 1,758,982 1,766,066
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) . . . (44,098) (434,633) 813,806 662,692 564,231

(1) In conjunction with the Recapitalization, we entered into a monitoring agreement whereby we would pay
management fees of $1.5 million per quarter to the Sponsors. The management fee was terminated in
connection with our initial public offering and a $20.0 million termination fee (also included in management
fees) was paid.

(2) The 2006 amount includes Recapitalization expenses of approximately $10.3 million for fees and expenses
related to the consummation of the Recapitalization that were not otherwise capitalized or applied Lo
stockholders’ equity.

(3) Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 includes a $4.6 million prepayment penalty related to
the $230.7 million repayment of Senior Term Facility debt and the write-off of $5.0 millien of deferred
financing costs associated with the repayment.

{4) For 2003, weighted average shares outstanding used in computing basic and diluted net income per common
share and basic and diluted net income per common share are unaudited.

(5) Weighted average shares outstanding were significantly reduced in 2007 as a result of our Recapitalization.

(6) Basic net income per common share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per common share has been computed using
the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period, increased to give
effect to any potentially dilutive securities. Additionally, for purposes of calculating basic and diluted net
income per common share, net income has been adjusted for preferred stock dividends. There were no dilutive
securities outstanding during 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003.
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(7) Utilization is defined as the average aggregate doilar value of equipment rented by customers (based on
original rented equipment cost) for the relevant period divided by the average aggregate dollar value of all
equipment (based on original equipment cost) for the relevant period.

The following table shows the calculation of utilization for each period presented.

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In millions)

Average aggregate dollar value of all

equipment (original cost). . ......... $2,5357 $2,197.8 $1,861.1 $1,779.0 $1,796.0
Average aggregate dollar value of '

equipmentonrent. . .............. 1,844.9 1,582.8 1,314.7 1,205.1 1,148.2
Utilization . ... ................... 72.8% 72.0% 70.6% 67.7% 63.9%

(8) Same store rental revenue growth is calculated as the year over year change in rental revenue for branches that
are open at the end of the period reported and have been operating under our direction for more than 12 months.

(9) Employee count is given as of the end of the period indicated and the data reflect the actual head count as of
each period presented.

(10) Original Equipment Fleet Cost (“OEC”) is defined as the original dollar value of equipment purchased from
the original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”). Fleet purchased from non-OEM sources are assigned
comparable OEC dollar value at the time of purchase.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations
Overview

We are one of the largest equipment rental providers in North America. We operate through a network of
473 rental locations across 10 regions in 39 U.S. states and 4 Canadian provinces. We believe we are the largest or
second largest equipment rental provider in the majority of the regions in which we operate. During the 18 months
ended December 31, 2007, we serviced approximately 465,000 customers primarily in the non-residential
construction and industrial markets. We rent a broad selection of equipment ranging from large equipment such
as backhoes, forklifts, air compressors, scissor lifts, booms and skid-steer loaders to smaller items such as pumps,
generators, welders and electric hand tools. We also sell used equipment, parts, merchandise and supplies for
maintenance, repair and operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we generated revenues, income before provision for income taxes and
net income of $1,769.2 million, $202.5 million and $123.3 million, respectively. For the year ended December 31,
2006, we generated revenues, income before provision for income taxes and net income of $1,652.9 million,
$304.5 million and $186.5 million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2005, we generated revenues,
income before provision for income taxes and net income of $1,460.8 million, $257.8 million and $164.2 million,
respectively.

For trends affecting our business and the markets in which we operate see “— Factors Affecting Our Results of
Operations” below and also “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Qur Business” in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual
Report.

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations

Qur revenues and operating results are driven in large part by activities in the non-residential construction and
industrial markets. These markets are cyclical with activity levels that tend to increase in line with growth in gross
domestic product and decline during times of economic weakness. In addition, activity in the construction market
tends to be susceptible to seasonal fluctuations in certain parts of the country, This results in changes in demand for
our rental equipment. The cyclicality and seasonality of the equipment rental industry result in variable demand
and, therefore, our revenues and operating results may fluctuate from period to period.
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Our revenues and operating results are also affected by price increases for raw materials and energy, which
have led to an increase in our equipment costs from many of cur manufacturers. To the extent that demand for rental
equipment falls and, in particular, if demand for such equipment falls below supply, we may not be able to set rental
rates and resell used equipment at prices that will offset increased equipment costs resulting from increased raw
materials and energy costs.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our audited
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results, however, may materially differ from our calculated estimates and this
difference would be reported in our current operations.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant judgments and estimates used
in the preparation of our financial statements and changes in these judgments and estimates may impact future
results of operations and financial condition. For additional discussion of our accounting policies see Note 2 to our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Rental Equipment

Rental equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the equipment using the
straight-line method. The range of estimated lives for rental equipment is one to ten years. Rental equipment is
depreciated to estimated 'salvage values that range from zero to ten percent of cost. Incremental costs related to
acquiring rental equipment and subsequently renting such equipment are expensed as incurred. Ordinary repair and
maintenance costs are charged to operations as incurred. When rental fleet is disposed of, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective accounts, and any gains or losses are included in gross
profit.

We have factory-authorized arrangements for the refurbishment of certain equipment. We continue to record
depreciation expense while the equipment is out on refurbishment. The cost of refurbishment is added to the
existing net book value of the asset. The combined cost is depreciated over 48 months. The total net book value of
the equipment and the total refurbishment cost following completion of the refurbishment may not exceed the
equipment’s current fair value.

Reserve for Claims

Our insurance program for general liability, automobile, workers’ compensation and pollution claims involves
deductibles or self-insurance, with varying risk retention levels. Claims in excess of these risk retention levels are
covered by insurance, up to certain policy limits. We are fully self-insured for medical claims. Our excess loss
coverage for general liability, automobile, workers’ compensation and pollution claims starts at $1.0 million,
$1.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.25 million respectively. With the exception of pollution claims, this coverage was
in effect for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The coverage for pollution claims has been in
effect since the Recapitalization. We establish reserves for reported claims that are asserted and for claims that are
believed to have been incurred but not yet reported. These reserves reflect an estimate of the amounts that we wilk be
required to pay in connection with these claims. The estimate of reserves is based upon assumptions relating to the
probability of losses and historical settlement experience. These estimates may change based on, among other
events, changes in claims history or receipt of additional information relevant to assessing the claims. Furthermore,
these estimates may prove to be inaccurate due to factors such as adverse judicial determinations or settlements at
higher than estimated amounts. Accordingly, we may be required to increase or decrease the reserves.
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We account for derivative instruments and hedging activities in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended. In accordance with this standard, our derivative financial instruments are recognized on the balance sheet
at fair value, Changes in the fair value of our derivatives, which are designated as cash flow hedges, are recorded in
other comprehensive income to the extent that the hedges are highly effective. Ineffective portions of cash flow
hedges, if any, are recognized in current period earnings. Hedge effectiveness is calculated by comparing the fair
value of the derivative to a hypothetical derivative that would be a perfect hedge of the hedged transaction. Other
comprehensive income or loss is reclassified into current period earnings when the hedged transaction affects
earnings.

Share-Based Compensation

We account for share-based compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based
Payment, which replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Under the fair value
recognition provisions, we estimate share-based compensation at the award grant date and recognize expense
over the service period. The fair values of option awards are estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The valuation model requires the input of subjective assumptions.

Expected volatilities are based on the historical stock price volatility of comparable companies. Expected
term, which represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding, is estimated using
expected term data disclosed by comparable companies. Groups of employees that are expected to have similar
exercise behavior are considered separatety for valuation purposes. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the
contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve. Changes in the assumptions used can
materially affect the fair value estimates.

Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill

Management estimates and judgment are required in determining expectations for future cash flows associated
with long-lived assets and goodwill. If the actual results differ from the estimates and judgments used in these
estimates, the amounts recorded in the financial statements could result in an impairment charge, and such a charge
could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Long-lived assets such as rental equipment and property and equipment are measured for impairment
whenever events or changes in circurnstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable,
If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of the
assets to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If the assets are impaired, the
impairment recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the
assets. Fair value is generally determined by estimates of discounted cash flows. We recognized no impairment of
long-lived assets in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Goodwill was $925.6 million at both December 31, 2007 and 2006. We review the carrying value of goodwill
for impairment annually during the fourth quarter, and whenever an impairment indicator is identified. Based on our
analyses, there was no impairment of goodwill in connection with the annual impairment tests that were performed
during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The goodwill impairment test involves a two-step approach. Under the first step, we determine the fair value of
each reporting unit to which goodwill has been assigned. We compare the fair value of the reporting unit to its
carrying value, including goodwill. We estimate the fair values of our reporting units utilizing an income approach
valuation. If the estimated fair value exceeds the carrying value, no impairment loss is recognized. If the carrying
value exceeds the fair value, goodwill is considered potentially impaired and the second step is completed in order
to measure the impairment loss. Under the second step, we calculate the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting
the fair value of all tangible and intangible net assets, including any unrecognized intangible assets, of the reporting
unit from the fair value of the reporting unit as determined in the first step. We then compare the implied fair value of
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goodwill to the carrying value of goodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying value of
goodwill, we recognize an impairment loss equal to the difference,

Revenue Recognition

We rent equipment primarily to the nonresidential construction and industrial markets. We record unbilled
revenue for revenues earned in each reporting period which have not yet been billed to the customer. Rental contract
terms may be hourly, daily, weekly, or monthly and may extend across financial reporting periods. Rental revenue is
recognized over the applicable rental period.

We recognize revenue on used equipment and merchandise sales when title passes to the customer, the
customer takes ownership, assumes risk of loss, and collectibility is reasonably assured. There are no rights of return
or warranties offered on product sales.

Income Taxes

Prior to the Recapitalization, RSC Holdings had other lines of businesses and the consolidated tax return of
RSC Holdings for those periods included the results from those other lines of businesses. Our income taxes as
presented in the consolidated financial statements are calculated on a separate tax return basis that does not include
the results from those other lines of businesses. Under Atlas’ ownership, RSC Holdings managed its tax position for
the benefit of its entire portfolio of businesses, and its tax strategies were not necessarily reflective of the tax
strategies that we would have followed or do follow as a stand-alone company.

Income taxes are accounted for under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109™), as
interpreted by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”). Under SFAS No. 109 deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences of differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts and the respective tax bases of assets and liabilities and operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets when realization of such
assets is not considered to be more likely than not. Adjustments to the deferred income tax valuation allowance are
made periodically based on management’s assessment of the recoverability of the related assets.

Provisions for deferred income taxes are recorded to the extent of withholding taxes and incremental taxes, if
any, that arise from repatriation of dividends from those foreign subsidiaries where local earnings are not
permanently reinvested. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in the tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date.

The Recapitalization
Structure of the Recapitalization

In November 2006 we underwent a Recapitalization. The Recapitalization was accomplished through (a) the
repurchase by RSC Holdings of a portion of its issued and outstanding common stock from ACF for (i) $3,345 mil-
lion, as adjusted on the Recapitalization Closing Date and on March 9, 2007, as described under “Recent
Transactions — The Recapitalization — Recapitalization Agreement” and (ii) the right to receive up to $400 mil-
lion aggregate principal amount of contingent earn-out notes by Atlas, as described under “Recent Transactions —
The Recapitalization — Recapitalization Agreement — Contingent Earn-Out Notes,” and (b) the $500 million cash
equity investment in RSC Holdings by the Sponsors, less a partial return of equity to the Sponsors of $40.0 million,
in exchange for a portion of the issued and outstanding common stock of RSC Holdings. Immediately after the
Recapitalization, Ripplewood and Oak Hill each owned 42.735% of RSC Holdings’ issued and outstanding capital
stock and ACF owned 14.53% of RSC Holdings’ issued and outstanding capital stock.
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Accounting Treatment

We accounted for the Recapitalization as a leveraged recapitalization. Under leveraged recapitalization
accounting, RSC Holdings’ assets and liabilities remain at historical values and are not revalued and recorded at
their fair value at the time of the Recapitalization,

Initial Public Offering

In May 2007, we completed an initial public offering of our common stock. The number of common shares
offered was 20,833,333, Of these shares, 12,500,000 were new shares offered by RSC Holdings and 8,333,333 were
shares offered by certain of our current stockholders. RSC Holdings did not receive any of the proceeds from the
sale of the shares by the Sponsors and ACF. The common stock was offered at a price of $22.00 per share. We used
the net proceeds from this offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and offering expenses, of $255.1 million
to repay $230.7 million of the Senior Term Facility, an associated prepayment penalty of $4.6 million, and a
termination fee of $20.0 million to the Sponsors related to the termination of the monitoring agreement.

Results of Operations

Revenues:

» Equipment rental revenue consists of fees charged to customers for use of equipment owned by us over the
term of the rental as well as other fees charged to customers for items such as, delivery and pickup, fuel and
damage waivers.

+ Merchandise sales revenues represent sales of contractor supplies, consumables and ancillary products and,
to a lesser extent, new equipment.

+ Sale of used rental equipment represents revenues derived from the sale of rental equipment that has
previously been included in our rental fleet.
Cost of revenues:

* Cost of revenues for equipment rentals consists primarily of wages and benefits for employees involved in
the delivery and maintenance of rental equipment, rental location facility costs and rental equipment repair
and maintenance expenses.

* Depreciation — rental equipment consists of straight-line depreciation of equipment included in our rental
fleet.

* Cost of sales of merchandise represents the costs of acquiring those items.
* Cost of rental equipment sales represents the net book value of rental equipment at the date of sale.

Selling, general, and administrative costs primarily includes sales force compensation, information technology
costs, advertising and marketing, professional fees and administrative overhead.
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Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

The following table sets forth for each of the periods indicated certain of our consolidated stalements of
income data and expresses revenue and expense data as a percentage of total revenues for the periods presented

Increase (Decrease)
2007 Versus 2006

(in 000s):
Percent of
Revenue
Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues: .
Equipment rental revenue . ......... $1,543,175 §1,368,712 87.2% 82.8% $ 174,463
Sale of merchandise .............. 80,649 92,524 4.6 5.6 (11,875
Sale of used rental equipment . ...... 145,358 191,652 8.2 11.6 (46,294)
Total revenues . . . .......ovnnn.. 1,769,182 1,652,888 100.0 100.0 116,294
Cost of revenues:;
Cost of equipment rentals, excluding
depreciation. . ................. 642,199 591,340 36.3 35.8 50,859
Depreciation rental equipment . ... ... 295,248 253,379 16.7 15.3 41,869
Cost of merchandise sales .......... 49,304 57,636 28 3.5 (8,332)
Cost of used rental equipment sales . . . 103,076 145,425 5.8 8.8 (42,349
Total cost of revenues ........... 1,089,827 1,047,780 61.6 634 42,047
Grossprofit. . ..... ..o 679,355 605,108 384 36.6 74,247
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative . . . . 155,263 134,967 8.8 8.2 20,296
Management fees and Recapitalization
EXPEOSES . . o oo e 23,000 10,836 1.3 0.7 12,164
Depreciation and amortization -
nonrental equipment. . ........... 46,226 38,783 2.6 2.3 7,443
Total operating expenses ......... 224,489 184,586 12.7 11.2 39,903
Operating income . ...........o..... 454,866 420,522 25.7 25.4 34,344
Interest expense, net . ............... 253,478 116,370 14.3 1.0 137,108
Otherincome, net . . ........oovun... (1,126) (31D) {1} —_— (815)
Income before provision for income
BAKES o v oo e e 202,514 304,463 114 18.4 (101,949)
Provision for income taxes ........... 79,260 117,941 4.5 7.1 (38,681)
Netincome. ......uvniverenennan.. $ 123254 § 186,522 70% 11.3% $ (63,268)

12.7%
(12.8)
(24.2)

7.0

8.6
16.5
(14.5)
(29.1)

4.0
12.3

15.0
112.3

19.2
216

82
117.8
262.1

(33.5)
(32.8)

(33.9)

Total revenues increased $116.3 million, or 7.0%, from $1,652.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
to $1,769.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Equipment rental revenue increased $174.5 million, or
12.7%, from $1,368.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $1,543.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The increase in equipment rental revenues was primarily the result of a $159.4 million, or
11.6%, increase in rental volume and a $9.9 million, or 0.7%, increase in rental rates.

Merchandise sales revenues decreased $11.9 million, or 12.8%, from $92.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to $80.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 primarily as a result of our continued
focus on items that provide higher margins and complement our core rental activity.
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Revenues from the sale of used rental equipment decreased $46.3 million, or 24.2%, from $191.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 to $145.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 as high rental demand
and a young and well maintained fleet reduced our need to sell and replace existing equipment.

Cost of equipment rentals, excluding depreciation, increased $50.9 million, or 8.6%, from $591.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 1o $642.2 milion for the year ended December 31, 2007, due primarily 10 a
corresponding increase in equipment rental volume, with a 12.7% increase in equipment rental revenues for the
same period. Cost of equipment rentals excluding depreciation, as a percentage of equipment rental revenues
decreased from 43.2% to 41.6% for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the prior year largely due to
same store growth, which allows us to take advantage of existing infrastructure.

Depreciation of rentat equipment increased $41.9 million, or 16.5%, from $253.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to $295.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. As a percent of equipment rental
revenues, depreciation increased from 18.5% in the year ended December 31, 2006 to 19.1% in the year ended
December 31, 2007, The increase is due to our continued investment in fleet.

Cost of sales of merchandise decreased $8.3 million, or 14.5%, from $57.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to $49.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, which corresponds with the decrease in
merchandise sales revenue, As a result of our continued focus on items that complement our core rental activity and
provide higher margins, gross margin for the sale of merchandise increased from 37.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to 38.9% for the year ended December 31, 2007,

Cost of used rental equipment sales decreased $42.3 million, or 29.1%, from $145.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to $103.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The decrease is primarily due to the
24.2% decrease in sales of used rental equipment for the year ended December 31, 2007 discussed previously. Gross
margin for the sale of used rental equipment increased from 24.1% for the year ended December 31, 2006 to 29.1%
for the year ended December 31, 2007, Increased rental demand as well as the quality, age and condition of our fleet
contributed to the higher margin.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $20.3 million, or 15.0%, from $135.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 to $155.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. This increase is primarily
due to increases in salesforce compensation of $9.3 million, increased infrastructure expenditures to support our
status as a publicly traded company of $2.1 million and share-based compensation expense of $2.4 million. Selling,
general and administrative expenses increased as a percentage of total revenues from 8.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to 8.8% for the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase as a percentage of revenues is
primarily due to the growth in salesforce compensation which increased by a greater percentage than total revenues,
as well as public company costs and share-based compensation. [n addition revenues from sales of merchandise and
used equipment have decreased as the Company focuses on its core rental business. We expect SG&A costs to
increase in 2008 due to increased infrastructure and other costs associated with being a public company.

Depreciation and amortization —— non-rental equipment increased $7.4 million, or 19.2%, from $38.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $46.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, The increase is
primarily due to an initiative to replace older sales and delivery vehicles, beginning in 2006 and continuing through
2007.

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, we paid $23.0 million and $0.6 million,
respectively, to the Sponsors under the monitoring agreement entered into on the Recapitalization Closing Date.
Included in this amount is a fee of $20.0 million paid to the Sponsors on May 29, 2007, in connection with the
termination of this agreement. Also, in the year ended December 31, 2006, we paid $10.3 million related to fees and
expenses incurred in connection with the consummation of the Recapitalization and not otherwise capitalized or
applied to stockholders’ equity, for which there are no comparable amounts in 2007.

Interest expense, net increased $137.1 million, or 117.8%, from $116.4 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2006 to $253.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily due to the new debt incurred in
connection with the Recapitalization. Included in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 is the
payment of a $4.6 million prepayment penalty related to our $230.7 million repayment of Senior Term Facitity debt
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and the expensing of $5.0 million of deferred financing costs associated with the Senior Term Facility debt that was

repaid.

The provision for income tax decreased $38.7 million, or 32.8%, from $117.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to $79.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily due to a decrease in pre-tax
profits for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

income data and expresses revenue and expense data as a percentage of total revenues for the periods presented

in ‘(OOOS):

Revenues:

Equipment rental revenue . ..........
Sale of merchandise . . .............
Sale of used rental equipment ... .....

Total revenues. . .......ccovveennn

Cost of equipment rentals, excluding

depreciation ............... ...,
Depreciation — rental equipment. . . . . .
Cost of merchandise sales. ..........
Cost of used rental equipment sales. . . .

Total cost of revenues . . ..........

Grossprofit . ........ ... ... ... ...

Operating expenses:

Selling, general, and administrative . . . .

Management fees and Recapitalization

BXPENMSES . o v v v i

Depreciation and amortization —

nonrental equipment . .. ..........
Total operating expenses . . ........

Operating income. .. ................
Interest expense, net. . ...............
Other income, net. .. .« . .o oev v,

Income before provision for income

The following table sets forth for each of the periods indicated certain of our consolidated statements of
Percent of
Revenue
Twelve Months
Twelve Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, Incrense (Decrease)
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 Versus 2005
$1,368,712  §1,140,329 82.8% 78.1% $228,383 20.0%
92,524 102,894 5.6 7.0 (10,370) (10.)
191,652 217,534 11.6 14.9 (25,882) (11.9)
1,652,888 1,460,757 1000 100.0 192,131 13.2
591,340 527,208 358 36.1 64,132 12.2
253,379 212,325 153 14.5 41,054 19.3
57,636 69,914 35 4.8 (12,278) (17.6)
145,425 173,276 8.8 11.9 (27,851) (16.1)
1,047,780 982,723 63.4 67.3 65,057 6.6
605,108 478,034 36.6 27 127,074 26.6
134,967 122,281 8.2 8.4 12,686 104
10,836 — 0.7 — 10,836 1000
38,783 33,776 2.3 23 5,007 14.8
184,586 156,057 11.2 10.7 28,529 18.3
420,522 321,977 254 220 98,545 30.6
116,370 64,280 7.0 4.4 52,090 81.0
31D (100) — — 21 2110
304,463 257,797 18.4 17.6 46,666 18.1
117,941 93,600 7.1 6.4 24,341 26.0
$ 186,522 $ 164,197 11.3% 11.2% § 22,325 13.6%

Total revenues increased $192.1 million, or 13.2%, from $1,460.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2005 to $1,652.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Equipment rental revenue increased $228.4 million,

or 20.0%, from $1,140.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $1,368.7 million for the year ended
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December 31, 2006. The increase in equipment rental revenues was primarily the result of a $173.6 million, or
15.2%, increase in rental volume and a $54.8 million, or 4.8%, increase in rental rates.

Revenues from the sale of merchandise decreased $10.4 million, or 10.1%, from $102.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 to $92.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease was the result of
our strategic decision to focus on our more profitable rental operations.

Revenues from the sale of used rental equipment decreased $25.9 million, or 11.9%, from $217.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2005 to $191.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, due to the fact that the
quality, age and condition of the fleet reduced our need to sell and replace existing equipment.

Cost of equipment rentals, excluding depreciation, increased $64.1 million, or 12.2%, from $527.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2005 to $591.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, due primarily to a
corresponding increase in equipment rental volume with a 20.0% increase in equipment rental revenues for the
same period.

Depreciation of rental equipment increased $41.1 million, or 19.3%, from $212.3 miilion for the year ended
December 31, 2005 to $253.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, due to our investment in new fleet. As
a percent of equipment rental revenues depreciation decreased from 18.6% in the year ended December 31, 2005 to
18.5% in the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease is due to our implementation of capital efficiency
initiatives, including a reduction of unavailable fleet from 10.5% to 8.9% and an increase in fleet utilization from
70.6% to 72.0% over the same period, which resulted in an increase in equipment rental revenue without a
proportionate increase in fleet size. :

Cost of sales of merchandise decreased $12.3 million, or 17.6%, from $69.9 million for the vear ended
December 31, 2005 to $57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, due to the reduction of merchandise
sales resulting from our strategic decision to focus on our more profitable rental operatians, The gross margin for the
sale of merchandise increased from 32.1% to 37.7% during that period. The increased margins are a result of our
efforts to focus on targeted product categories that complement the reatal transaction, with higher margin and less
emphasis on lower margin new equipment sales.

Cost of used rental equipment sales decreased $27.9 million, or 16.1%, from $173.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 to $145.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 in line with the overall reduction in
used rental equipment sales. Gross margin for the sale of used rental equipment increased from 20.3% 10 24.1% over
the same periods, respectively, due to a reduction of sales of older equipment,

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $12.7 million, or 10.4%, from $122.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005 to $135.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Of this increase,
$7.3 million was due to an increase in sales force compensation resulting from increased rental revenue and the
remainder was due to an increase in general administrative and corporate costs. Selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased as a percentage of revenue from 8.4% for the year ended December 31, 2005 to 8.2% for the
year ended December 31, 2006. This decrease as a percentage of revenue was due to our ability to leverage our
operating efficiencies.

Depreciation and amortization — non-rental equipment increased $5.0 million, or 14.8%, from $33.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $38.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily as a result
of an initiative to replace older sales and delivery vehicles.

Management fees and Recapitalization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily consist of
$10.3 million related to fees and expenses incurred in connection with the consummation of the Recapitalization
and not otherwise capitalized or applied to stockholders’ equity, for which there are no comparable amounts in
2005, The remaining $.6 mitlion relate to fees paid to the Sponsors under the monitoring agreement entered into on
the Recapitalization date.

Interest expense, net increased $52.1 million, or 81.0%, from $64.3 million for the vear ended December 31,
2005 to $116.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, partially due to the fact that, effective January 1,
2006, the rate charged on certain pre-Recapitalization outstanding debt changed (resulting in an increase in the
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effective interest rate on such 'debt) and partially due to an increase in total outstanding debt resulting from the
Recapitalization from $1,246.8 miilion to $3,006.4 million from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006.

The provision for income tax increased $24.3 million, or 26.0%, from $93.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 to $117.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily due to an increase in pre-tax
profits for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Cash Flows

As of December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $10.0 million, a decrease of $36.1 million from
December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents of $46.2 million, an increase of
$39.1 million from December 31, 2005.

Our operations are funded primarily by cash provided by operating activities. Net cash provided by operating
activities during the year ended December 31, 2007 was $504.9 million, an increase of $68.9 million from the year
ended December 31, 2006. A $63.3 million decrease in net income was more than offset by a $51.6 million increase
in non-cash expenses and an $85.3 million variance in cash flow related to changes in working capital accounts. Net
cash provided by operating activities was $436.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, a decrease of
$122.8 million from the year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease was primarily due to normal variations in
purchasing patterns.

Our business is highly capital intensive and our primary use of cash in investing activities is for the acquisition
of rental equipment. Net cash used in investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2007 was
$444.2 million, a decrease of $98.0 million from the year ended December 31, 2006. This decrease is primarily
due to decreased investment in rental fleet. Due to the age and quality of our fleet, we have been able to reduce the
amount of fleet sold and thereby reduce our need for capital expenditures to replace fleet. Net cash used in investing
activities was $542.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $79.4 million from the year
ended December 31, 2005, For the year ended December 31, 2007, our expenditures for rental equipment were
$580.2 million, partially offset by proceeds from the disposal of such equipment of $145.4 million. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, our expenditures for rental equipment were $721.3 million, partially offset by proceeds
from the disposal of such equipment of $191.7 million. For the year ended December 31, 2005, our expenditures for
rental equipment were $691.9 million, partially offset by proceeds from the disposal of such equipment of
$217.5 million. We believe RSC’s young and well-maintained fleet with an average age of 26 months will continue
to afford us operating flexibility as we move into 2008 and we expect to significantly reduce our capital
expenditures.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, our capital expenditures for property and non-rental equipment were
$20,7 million. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our capital expenditures for property and non-rental
equipment were $28.6 million. This decrease was primarily the result of a reduction in expenditures related to
leasehold improvements. For the year ended December 31, 2005, our capital expenditures for property and non-
rental equipment were $4.6 million.

Indebtedness

On the Recapitalization Closing Date, RSC entered into a series of financing and refinancing transactions. For
a description of the Recapitalization, see “Recent Transactions — The Recapitalization.”
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Senior ABL Facilities. We have a senior secured asset based credit facility with Deutsche Bank AG,
New York Branch (“DBNY”), as administrative agent, Citicorp North America, Inc. (“Citigroup”), as syndication
agent, and the other financial institutions party thereto from time to time. The facility consists of a $1,450 million
revolving credit facility and a $250 million term loan facility. As of December 31, 2007, we had balances of
$828.0 million on the revolving credit facility and $246.9 million on the term loan facility as well as $474.0 million
available under the revolving credit facility. The revolving loans under the Senior ABL Facilities mature five years
from the Recapitalization Closing Date. The term loans under the Senior ABL Facilities will mature six years from
the Recapitalization Closing Date. The term loans under the Senior ABL Facilities amortize in equal quarterly
installmenis of one percent of the aggregate principal amount thereof per annum until their maturity date. The
Senior ABL Facilities contain a number of covenants that, among other things, limit or restrict the ability of the
borrowers and the guarantors to incur additional indebtedness; provide guarantees; engage in mergers, acquisitions
or dispositions; enter into sale-leaseback transactions; make dividends and other restricted payments; prepay other
indebtedness (including the Notes); engage in certain transactions with affiliates; make other investments; change
the nature of its business; incur liens; with respect to RSC Holdings Il, LLC, take actions other than those
enumerated; and amend specified debt agreements. In addition, under the Senior ABL Facilities, upon excess
availability falling below certain levels, the borrowers will be required 1o comply with specified financial ratios and
tests, including a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1,00 to 1.00 and a maximum leverage ratio as of the last
day of any test period during any period set forth in the following table:

Consolidated
Fiscal Quarter Ending Leverage Ratio
December 31, 2007 . . ...\ttt et 5.00:1.00
March 31, 2008, . . . .. e e e, 4.75:1.00
June 30, 2008 . ... e e e e e 4.75:1.00
September 30, 2008. . .. . ... e 475:1.00
December 31, 2008 . .. . e e e e e 4.75:1.00
March 31, 2000 . . L e e 4.50:1.00
June 30, 2000 . .. e e e e e e 4.50:1.00
September 30, 2000, . . . . ... e e 4.50:1.00
December 31, 2000 . ... e 4.50:1.00
March 31, 2010 and at all times thereafter . .. ... ... .. ... . ... L 4.25:1.00

As of December 31, 2007, if the coverage ratio and leveraged ratio tests had been triggered by a reduction in
excess availability under the Senior ABL Facilities, the borrowers would have been in compliance with such
financial ratios and tests.

Senior Term Facility. We have entered into a senior secured second-lien term loan facility with DBNY, as
administrative agent, Citigroup, as syndication agent, General Electric Capital Corporation (“GECC™), as co-
documentation agent and the other financial institution as party thereto from time to time. As of December 31, 2007,
the balance of the Senior Term Facility was $899.3 million and no additional amounts are available to us under this
facility. The Sentor Term Facility matures seven years from the Recapitalization Closing Date. The term loans will
not amortize. The Senior Term Facility contains a number of covenants substantially identical to, but no more
restrictive than, the covenants contained in the Senior ABL Facilities. However, under the Senior Term Facility, the
borrowers are not required to comply with covenants relating to borrowing base reporting or to specified financial
maintenance covenants.

The Notes. In November 2006, we issued $620 million aggregate principal amount of 9%2% senior notes due
2014, The indenture for the Notes contains covenants that, among other things, limit our ability, as described more
fully in the indenture, to incur more debt, pay dividends, redeem stock or make other distributions, make
investments, create liens, transfer or sell assets, merge or consolidate and enter into certain transactions with
affiliates. The Notes are redeemable, at our option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time on and after
December 1, 2010 and prior to maturity at the applicable redemption price set forth in the indenture. Any such
redemption may, in our discretion, be subject to the satisfaction of one or more conditions precedent, including but
not limited to the occurrence of a change of control (as defined in the indenture governing the Notes). In addition, at
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any time and from time to time on or prior to December 1, 2009, we may redeem up to 35% of the original aggregate
principal amount of the Notes, with funds in an equal aggregate amount up to the aggregate proceeds of certain
equity offerings, at a redemption price of 109.5%, for Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date. This redemption provision is subject to a requirement that Notes in an aggregate principal amount
equal to at least 65% of the original aggregate principal amount of Notes must remain outstanding after each such
redemption of Notes.

In accordance with the registration rights agreement, dated as of November 27, 2006, entered into in
connection with the issnance on November 27, 2006 by RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. and RSC Holdings III,
LLC of their 9%4% Senior Notes due 2014 (the *“old notes”) in a transaction exempt from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. and RSC Holdings 11I, LLC completed an
exchange offer in the quarter ended September 30, 2007 pursuant to which they offered to exchange $620 million in
aggregate principal amount of their 9%% Senior Notes due 2014 {the “new notes”), which were registered under the
Securities Act, for equal principal amounts of their outstanding old notes. The terms of the new notes are
substantiatly identical to those of the old notes, except that the transfer restrictions and registration rights relating to
the old notes do not apply to the new notes.

Liquidity

We are highly leveraged and a substantial portion of our liquidity needs arise from debt service on indebtedness
incurred in connection with the Recapitalization and from the funding of our costs of operations, working capital
and capital expenditures.

We rely primarily on cash generated from operations and borrowings under our Senior ABL Facilities to
purchase equipment for our rental fleet. As of December 31, 2007, we had a balance of $828.0 million and available
borrowings of $474.0 million related to the revolving portion of the Senior ABL Facilities. The available
borrowings as of December 31, 2007 were reduced by $132.3 million of outstanding letters of credit and the
$15.7 million fair value liability of our interest rate swap agreements, and are subject to our maintenance of a
sufficient borrowing base under the Senior ABL Facilities. For a discussion of risks related to our reliance on
borrowings under our Senior ABL Facilities to purchase equipment, see “Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our
Business — Qur reliance on available borrowings under our Senior ABL Facilities and cash from operating
activities to purchase new equipment subjects us to a number of risks, many of which are beyond our control.”

Also, substantially all of our rental equipment and all our other assets are subject to liens under our Senior ABL
Facilities and our Senior Term Facility. None of such assets will be available to satisfy the claims of our general
creditors.

We believe that cash generated from operations, together with amounts available under the Senior ABL
Facilities, will be adequate to permit us to meet our debt service obligations, ongoing costs of operations, working
capital needs and capital expenditure requirements for the foreseeable future. Qur future financial and operating
performance, ability to service or refinance our debt and ability to comply with covenants and restrictions contained
in our debt agreements will be subject to future economic conditions and to financial, business and other factors,
many of which are beyond our control. See “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements.”

Contractual Obligations

The following table details the contractual cash obligations for debt, operating leases and purchase obligations
as of December 31, 2007. The contractual obligations presented below do not give effect to the contingent earn-out
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note. For information regarding the contingent earn-out notes, see “Recent Transactions — The Recapitalization —
Contingent Earn-Out Notes” and Note 1 to our audited consolidated financial statements.

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

(¥n millions)

Contractual Obligations

Debt ..o e $2,594.2 $ 25 $ 5.0 $10674 $1,5193
Capital Leases . .. ..... ... i ennns 142.0 33.6 584 350 15.0
Interest on Debt and Capital Leases(1) .......... 1,185.6 215.6 426.7 3584 184.9
Operating Leases . . ... 172.7 472 74.7 394 114
Purchase Obligations(2) .. .............. ... .. 17.7 17.7 — — —

Total .. ... e $4,112.2  $316.6 $564.8  $1,500.2  §1,730.6

(1) Estimated interest for debt for all periods presented is calculated using the interest rate effective as of
December 31, 2007 of (i) 7.0% for the Senior ABL Facilities, (ii) 8.75% for the unhedged portion and 8.14% for
the hedged portion of the Senior Term Facility, (iii) .25% on the $622.0 million of undrawn capacity under the
revolving portion of the Senior ABL Facilities and (iv) 9.50% on the Notes and (v) 4.6% for capital leases.
Principal payments are reflected when contractually required, and no early paydowns are reflected.

(2) As of December 31, 2007, we had outstanding purchase orders with our equipment suppliers. These purchase
orders, which were negotiated in the ordinary course of business, total approximately $17.7 million, Generally,
these purchase orders can be cancelled by us with 30 days notice and without cancellation penalties.

Capital Expenditures

The table below shows rental equipment and property and non-rental equipment capital expenditures and
related disposal proceeds received by year for 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Rental Equipment Property and Non-Rental Equipment

Gross Capital Disposal Net Capital Gross Capital Disposal Net Capital
Expenditures Proceeds Expenditures Expenditures Proceeds Expenditures

{In millions}

2007. ... $580.2 51454 $434.8 $20.7 * $113 $ 94
2006, ... L 7213 191.7 529.6 28.6 16.0 12.6
2005. . ... 691.9 217.5 4744 4.6 16.2 (11.6)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tuxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”), FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return, and also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We
adopted FIN 48 January 1, 2007 and did not recognize an increase or decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits as a result of the implementation of FIN 48.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 108, Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 108™).
SAB 108 requires analysis of misstatements using both an income statement (rollover) approach and a balance sheet
(iron curtain) approach in assessing materiality and provides for a one-time cumulative effect transition adjustment.
SAB 108 is only effective for public companies. We adopted SAB 108 upon becoming a public company. The
adoption did not have an impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fuir Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157"). This
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. This pronounce-
ment applies to other accounting standards that require or permit fair value measurements. Accordingly, this
statement does not require any new fair value measurement. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. However, on December 14, 2007, the FASB issued proposed FASB Staff Position (“FSP”)
FAS 157-b which would delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities,
except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least
annually). This proposed FSP partially defers the effective date of Statement 157 to fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP. Effective
for 2008, we will adopt SFAS 157 except as it applies to those nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities as
noted in proposed FSP FAS 157-b. The partial adoption of SFAS 157 will not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS No. 1597). This statement permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments at fair value. A business entity shall report unrealized gains
and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.
We will be required to adopt SFAS No. 159 in the first quarter of the year ending December 31, 2008. The adoption
of SFAS No. 159 will not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued a revision to SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (*SFAS No. 141R™).
SFAS No. 141R revises the accounting for business combinations. Under SFAS No. 141R, an acquiring entity will
be required to recognize the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition-date fair value
with limited exceptions. Specifically, SFAS No. [41R will change the accounting for acquisition costs, non-
controlling interests, acquired contingent liabilities, in-process research and development, restructuring costs
associated with a combination and certain tax-related items, as well as require additional disclosures.
SFAS No. 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. We will be required to apply SFAS No. 141R to any acquisitions subsequent to December 31, 2008.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are potentially exposed to market risk associated with changes in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. For more information on these exposures, see Note 2 to the notes to our audited consolidated
financiat statements included in this Annua! Report on Form 10-K.

Interest Rate Risk

We have a significant amount of debt under the Senior Credit Facilities with variable rates of interest based
generally on an adjusted London inter-bank offered rate, or “LIBOR”, or an alternate interest rate, in each case, plus
an applicable margin (or, in the case of Canadian dollar borrowings under the Senior ABL Facilities, variable
borrowing costs based generalty on bankers’ acceptance discount rates, plus a stamping fee equal to an applicable
margin, or on the Canadian prime rate, plus an applicable margin). Increases in interest rates could therefore
significantly increase the associated interest payments that we are required to make on this debt. We have assessed
our exposure to changes in interest rates by analyzing the sensitivity to our eamings assuming various changes in
market interest rates. Assuming a hypothetical increase of 1% in interest rates on our debt pertfolio, for the year
ended December 31, 2007, our net interest expense would have increased by an estimated $19.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. Excluding the effect of our hedge agreements, for the same period interest expense
would have increased $20.8 million assuming a hypothetical increase of 1%.

We entered into four forward-starting interest rate swap agreements in September 2007 vnder which we
exchanged our benchmark floating-rate interest payments for fixed-rate interest payments. The agreements are
intended to hedge the benchmark portion of interest associated with a portion of the Senior Term Facility. Interest on
this debt is based on a fluctuating rate of interest measured by reference to a benchmark interest rate, plus a
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borrowing margin, which is 3.5%. The agreements cover a combined notiorial amount of debt totaling $700 million,
of which $500 million is for a five year period with a weighted average fixed interest rate of 4.7% and $200 million
is for a three year period with a weighted average fixed interest rate of 4.6%. The swaps became effective on
October 3, 2007 and are settled on a quarterly basis. Including the $700 million of the Senior Term Facility that was
hedged as of December 31, 2007, 48% of our $2.7 billion of debt at December 31, 2007 has fixed rate interest.

We entered into an additional interest rate swap agreement in January 2008, under which we exchanged our
benchmark floating-rate interest payment for a fixed-rate interest payment. Similarly to the agreements entered into
in September 2007, this swap is intended to hedge the benchmark portion of interest associated with a portion of the
Senior ABL revolving credit facility. This agreement covers a notional amount of debt totaling $250.0 million, for a
two-year term at a fixed interest rate of 2.66%. The swap becomes effective on April 5, 2008 and will be settled on a
quarterly basis.

Currency Exchange Risk

The functional currency for our Canadian operations is the Canadian dollar. In 2007 and 2006, 4.9% and 4.0%,
respectively, of our revenues were generated by our Canadian operations. As a result, our future eamings could be
affected by fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. and Canadian dollars. Based upon the level of our
Canadian operations during 2007, a 10% increase in this exchange rate would have increased net income by
$1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Inflation

The increased acquisition cost of rental equipment is the primary inflationary factor affecting us. Many of our
other operating expenses are also expected to increase with inflation. Management does not expect that the effect of
inflation on our overall operating costs will be greater for us than for our competitors.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements and the related schedules required by this item are in Appendix F to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in company reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act of 1934 is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in company reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures was performed under the
supervision of, and with the participation of, management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Finanoial Officer, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

An evaluation of our internal controls over financial reporting was performed under the supervision of, and
with the participation of, management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to
determine whether any changes have occurred during the period covered by this Report that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Based upon this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that no changes in our internal
control over financial reporting have occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include a report on management’s assessment regarding internal control over
financial reporting or an attestation report of the company’s registered public accounting firm due to a transition
period established by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required to be filed under this Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference to RSC Holdings’
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2007.

The information required concerning our executive officers is contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Annual Report
on 10-K under “Business — Management”.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required to be filed under this item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to RSC Holdings’
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2007.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required to be filed under this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to RSC Holdings’
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2007.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required to be filed under this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to RSC Holdings’
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2007.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required to be filed under this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to RSC Holdings’
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2007.
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PART 1V

Item 15. Exhjibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

1. Consolidated Financial Statements: The consolidated financial statements of RSC Holdings Inc are
included as Appendix F of this Annual Report. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial
Statement Schedule on page F-1.

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule: The financial statement schedule required under the related
instructions is included within Appendix § of this Annual Report. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
and Financial Statement Schedule on page F-1.

3. Exhibits: The exhibits which are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K or which are incorporated
herein by reference are set forth in the Exhibit Index on page E-1
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Scottsdale, State of
Arizona, on March 14, 2008. :

RSC Holdings Inc.

By: /s/ Erik Olsson

Name: Erik Olsson
Title:  Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Erik Olsson and David Mathieson and each of them, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents,
with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities,
to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto
and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or
could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their
or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Ii_tE
/s/ Erik Olsson Chief Executive Officer, President and March 14, 2008
Erik Olsson Director {Principal Executive Officer)
s/ David Mathieson Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial ~ March 14, 2008
David Mathieson and Principal Accounting Officer)
/¢/  Denis Nayden Chairman of the Board, Director March 14, 2008

Denis Nayden

/s/  Timothy Collins _ Director March 14, 2008
Timothy Collins

/s/  Edward Dardani Director March 14, 2008
Edward Dardani

/s/  Douglas Kaden Director March 14, 2008
Douglas Kaden

/s! Christopher Minnetian Director March 14, 2008
Christopher Minnetian




Signature

/s/John R. Monsky

John R. Monsky

fs/  James Ozanne

James Ozanne

/s/  Scott Spielvoge!

Scott Spielvogel

/s/ _Donald Wagner

Donald Wagner

/s  Mark Cohen

Mark Cohen

/s/ Donald C. Roof

Donald C. Roof
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

The following financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries required to be included in Item 15(a)(1)
of Form 10-K are listed below:
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 .. .. .. F-6
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Supplementary Financial Data:
The following supplementary financial data of the Registrant and its subsidiaries required to be included

in Itern 15(2)(2) of Form 10-K are listed below:
Schedule 1 — Valunation and Qualifying Accounts. . ... ....... ... . i S-1

All other schedules not listed above have been omitted as not applicable orbecause the required information is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or in the notes thereto. Columns omitted from the schedule filed
have been omitted because the information is not applicable.




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
RSC Holdings Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of RSC Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
deficit and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2007. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited financial
statement schedule II. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the respon-
sibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of RSC Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of the
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, effective January 1, 2006. Also, as
discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, effective January 1, 2007.

/s  KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 14, 2008
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RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2007 2006
{In thousands,
except share data)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents .. ....... ... ... oot $ 10039 § 46,188
Accounts receivable, MEL. . . ..ottt e e e e 284,570 268,383
TNVEIMOTY .« o ottt ettt i e i i 21,563 18,489
Rental equipment, NEL. . ... .. oottt e 1,929,514 1,738,670
Property and eqUipment, BEE . .. ... o utt vttt e 191,501 170,192
GOOAWIl . . e e e 925,621 925,621
Deferred financing CostS . ... .o v ittt a i in i 55,660 67,915
OHhEr ASSBES & o v vt it e e e e 41,469 901,498
TOAl BSSES . + ¢ v v v v v e et e v e e e e e $3,460,337  $3,325,956
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Accounts Payable . . . ...t $ 264,384 % 296,086
Accrued expenses and other liabilities. . ... ...... ... .. il 179,876 163,996
0 =) 21 R O 2,736,225 3,006,426
Deferred iNCOME TAXES . . .. v v vt e ettt ettt ne e et 323,950 294,081
Total Habilities . . . o . vttt et e e et et e e et 3,504,435 3,760,589
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ deficit
Preferred stock, no par value, (500,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006).............. —_— —
Common stock, no par value, (300,000,000 shares authorized, 103,147,575 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 90,647,591 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2006) . .. ...... ... . ... i 820,344 556,482
Accumulated deficit . . .. ... i (876,645) {999,899)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ..., ... . i 12,203 8,784
Total stockholders” deficit. . . ... oo it e (44,098) (434,633)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit .. ... ... .. ... i, $3,460,337  $3,325,956

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,
20067 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Equipment rental revenue . . .. ..., ... e, $1,543,175  $1,368,712 31,140,329
Sale of merchandise . ....... ... .. 80,649 92,524 102,894
Sale of used rental equipment . . .. .......... .. .. ... ..., 145,358 191,652 217,534
Total TEVENUES . . o . o ettt et e s e e 1,769,182 1,652,888 1,460,757
Cost of revenues:
Cost of equipment rentals, excluding depreciation . ........... 642,199 591,340 327,208
Depreciation rental equipment ., .. ......... ... ........... 295,248 253,379 212,325
Costof merchandise sales . . .......... i, 49304 57,636 69,914
Cost of used rental equipment sales. .. .................... 103,076 145,425 173,276
Total costof revenues . . ... ... . e 1,089 827 1,047 780 982,723
Gross profit . . ... ... . . e 679,355 605,108 478,034
Operating expenses: ‘ '
Selling, general, and administrative . . . .................... 155,263 134,967 122,281
Management fees and Recapitalization expenses ............. 23,000 10,836 —
Depreciation and amortization non-rental equipment . ........, 46,226 38,783 33,776
Total operating expenses ... .. ... ... oeinurreann.. 224,489 184,586 156,057
Operating INCOME . . ...\ttt it n it iaieaenennens 454,866 420,522 321,977
Interest expense, NEt . .. . ... ...ttt i 253478 116,370 64,280
Other income, NEt. . ... ... .ttt tieannner e (1,126) 31D {100)
Income before provision for income taxes .. .................. 202,514 304,463 257,197
Provision for iNCOME LAXES . . . . . v vttt it ittt it e eee e eenn 79,260 117,941 93,600
Net INCOME. . ottt e e it et e et et $ 123254 § 186,522 % 164,197
Preferred dividends. . . .. ... ... ... .. . . e . — (7,997) (15,995)
Net income available for common stockholders . .. ............. $ 123254 § 178,525 § 148,202

Weighted average shares outstanding used in computing net income
per common share:

Basic ...... ... .. 98,237 307,845 330,697

Diluted. . ... ... 99,632 307,845 330,697
Net income per common share:

Basic .. ... e $ .25 § 058 % 045

DI - -+ oo et $ 124 $ 058 $ 045

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, January 1, 2005 . . . . . '

Components of comprehensive
income:

Netipcome. . . ...........

Foreign currency translation
adjustments ., .. ... ..

Tota! comprehensive income . .

Cash dividends on Series A
preferred stock

Capital contributions
Balance, Decetnber 3, 2005 . . .

Components of comprehensive
income:

Netincame. . ... vv v v ev s

Foreign currency translation
adjestments . . ... ...

Total comprehensive income . .

Cash dividends on Serics A
preferred stock
Capital contributions
Repurchase of shares in
connection with the
Recapitalization. . ... .. .. -
Issuance of commoen stock in
connection with the
Recapitalization, . . . ... ...
Exchange of commen stock for
new common stock . .. - . ...

Issuance of common stock o

Balance, December 31, 2006 . . .

Components of comprehensive
income:

Netincome. . . . ... .ovvnvs

Foreign currency translation
adjustments . ... .. ...

Change in fair value of derivatives
qualifying 25 cash flow hedges,
net of tax of $6,071

Total comprehensive income . . . .

Capital contributions
Issuance of common stock to

public
Elimination of fractional shares . .
Share-based compensation . . . . .

Balance, December 31, 2007 . . .

RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’
DEFICIT AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Serfes A New Common Anmu!l:ud
Preferred Stock Common Stock Stock Ace d Comprebensive Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Deflcit Income Income Total
(In thousands, except share data)

154 $350,000 330,697,047 § 1,113,735 —_ —  $(B0B.423) $ 7,380 $ 662,692
— — — — — _ 164,197 $164,197 — 164,197
- — — - — —_ — 2,070 2070 2,070

$166,267
— — — - — — {15995 — (15,995}
- — = 842 — = = = el

154 350,000 330,697.047 LIWST? — —  (560,221) 9,450 813,806
— — — — — — 186,522 $186,522 - 186,522
- - - - - = - {666) (666) (666)

$185,856
_— — —_ - — —_ (7,997 -— (7,997)
- — — 2909 — 4,730 _— — 7,639
(154)  (350,000) (317,669,667) {1,032,486) — - (518,200) — 1,500.689)
— — 76,633,189 460,000 — _ — — 460,000
— —  (89.660,569) {(545.000) 80.660.569 545,000 —_ — -_
-_ —_ — —_ 987,022 6,440 — -— 6,340
- — — —_ = 32 — —_ kivi
— _ — — 50,647,591 556,482  (999.899) 8,784 (434,633)
— _— — — — — 123,254 $123.254 — 123,254
-— —_ — —_ — — — 12914 12,914 12,914
— — — — — -— — (9,495) (9,495) (9.495)
— — — - — — - $126.673 .
— — — — — 4,500 —_ _ 4,500
— —_ — — 12,500,000 255,064 — e 255,064
- - - - a6 — — - -
= — — - — 428 — - 4,298
it 5 — — 3 — 103,147,575 $820.344 §(876,645) 512,203 5 (44095

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
L 1T PP $ 123,254 § 186,522 3 164,197
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Bonus expense paid by Atlas . ... ... .. — 4,730 —
Depreciation and amomization. . . .. . vt ittt e e e 341,474 292,162 246,101
Amortization of deferred financing costs .. ....... .. iy 13,435 1,001 —_
Share-based compensation eXpense . ... ... o i e e 4,298 2,061 3,077
Gain on sales of rental and non-rental property and equipment, net of non-cash
WHEOHS . . L e e (43,284) (43,866) (45227)
Deferred INCOmME [BXES . .. ...ttt i it e e s 35,524 48,458 72,212
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, NEL. . . . ... L e e (13,745) (22,776)  (31,065)
oIy . . oo it e e e e e e (2,844} 412 6,203
L0 T3 T3t -2 (705) 414 (3,014)
Accounts payable . .. ... ... e e e (1,414) (67,885 120,177
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .. ... ... .. ... ... .. ... 48,947 34,814 26,210
Net cash provided by operating activities ... ................c....... 504,940 436,047 558,871
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of rental equipment .. ...... ... .. .. i e e (580,194)  (721,258) (691,858)
Purchases of preperty and equipment ., .. ... ... ... .. ... (20,674) (28.592) (4.641)
Proceeds from sales of rental equipment . ........ ... ... .0t 145,358 191,652 217,534
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment .. ....................... 11,320 15,961 16,197
Net cash used in investing activities . . ... ... it {444,190}  (542.237) (462,768)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash consideration paid to Atlas. ... . ... .. ... . . . i i (17,995) (3,254,921) _—
Net cash equity investment by Sponsors . ....... ... i — 460,000 —
1ssuance of senior ABL facilities . ............ ... ... ... . . . .. — 1,124,000 -_—
Issuance of senior term facility . . ... ... .. . i e — 1,130,000 _—
Issuance of senjormotes. . . . .. ... . i e e — 620,000 —
Proceeds from senior ABL revolver. . . ... ... .. ... . i 99,457 4,291 —
Payments on senior ABL termrevolver . .. ... ... ... .. . L, (150,274) —_— —
Payments on senior ABLtermloan. .., .. ... .. ... . ... .. L i, (2,500) (623) —
Payments on Senior Term Facility. . .. ... .. ... ... ... .. . . . ... ... (230,700} — —_
Payments on capital leases and other debt . .. ... ... L. (39,030) 33,010y (26,785
Net proceeds (payments on) affiliated debt. . ... .. ... .. ... o i, — 148,301  (56,492)
Deferred financing coSIS .. .. ...ttt et e e e (842) (68,916} —
Proceeds from StOCK dSSUANCES . . . . ...ttt it it i e e 255,064 6,440 —
Cash dividends paid . ... ... .ot e e —_ (7,997 (15,995)
Capital contributions from Atlas . . ... ... ... ... .. . i 4,500 2,909 842
Increase (decrease) in outstanding checks in excess of cash balances. . . .., ... .. (14,774) 14,774 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. . .. ........ ... ..., (97,094) 145,246 (98,430)
Effect of foreign exchange rates oncash . ... ...... ... .. e, 195 (2) 4,938
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ................ (36,149) 39,054 2,611
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year .. . ........................ 46,188 7,134 4,523
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year. . . .. ... ... .. ... $ 10039 § 46,188 § 7,134
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cashpaid forinterest. . ... ... ot i i in it in ettt iaatannn 5218488 § 33,759 § 20932
Supplementat schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Purchase of assets under capital lease obligations .. .................... $ 52320 § 62,88 § 47870

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Organization
Business and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business

RSC Holdings Inc. (“RSC Holdings™) and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company™) are
primarily engaged in the rental of a diversified line of construction and industrial equipment, geographically
dispersed throughout the United States and Canada through its wholly owned subsidiaries. In February 2007, the
wholly owned subsidiaries Rental Service Corporation and Rental Service Corporation of Canada Ltd. officially
changed their names to RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. and RSC Equipment Rental of Canada Ltd., respectively
(coltectively, “RSC”). '

Basis of Presentation

Prior to November 27, 2006, RSC Holdings was wholly owned by Atlas Copco AB (“ACAB™) and Atlas
Copco Airpower n.v. (“ACA”), a wholly owned subsidiary of ACAB. At December 31, 2005, ACAB and ACA
(collectively, “Atlas”) owned 40.2% and 59.8% of the outstanding common shares of RSC Holdings, respectively.

On October 6, 2006, Atlas announced that it had entered into a recapitalization agreement {“Recapitalization™)
pursuant to which Ripplewood Holdings L.L.C. (“Ripplewood”) and Oak Hill Capital Partners (“Oak Hill” and
collectively with Ripptewood, “the Sponsors”) would acquire 85.5% of RSC Holdings. The Recapitalization closed
on November 27, 2006. The Recapitalization was accomplished through (a) the repurchase by RSC Holdings of a
portion of its issued and outstanding stock from Atlas and (b) a cash equity investment in RSC Holdings by the
Sponsors for stock. The Recapitalization was accounted for as a leveraged recapitalization with no change in the
book basis of assets and liabilities.

Prior to the closing of the Recapitalization, RSC Holdings formed RSC Holdings I, LLC, which is a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of RSC Holdings; RSC Holdings II, LL.C, which is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of
RSC Holdings 1, LLC; and RSC Holdings III, LLC, which is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of RSC Holdings 11,
LLC. Each of the newly formed entities were created for legal, tax or other corporate purposes and have nominal
assets. RSC is the surviving operating entity of RSC Holdings and is wholly owned by RSC Holdings III, LLC.

In connection with the Recapitalization, RSC, RSC Holdings I, LLC and RSC Holdings I11, LLC entered into
new senior asset-based loan facilities (“Senior ABL Facilities”), comprised of a $250.0 million term loan and a
$1,450.0 million revolving credit facility, and a new $1,130.0 million senior second-lien term loan facility (“Senior
Term Facility”) and issued $620.0 million aggregate principal amount of senior notes (“Senior Notes”).

Contemporaneously with the Recapitalization, the Sponsors made a $500.0 million cash equity investment,
less a partial return of equity to the Sponsors of $40.0 million, in RSC Holdings. The net consideration paid, and
accrued to be paid, to Atlas for the repurchased stock was $3,272.9 million. Atlas is responsible for certain liabilities
existing as of the closing date, including liabilities relating to income taxes, personal property and real property
taxes, stock appreciation right shares, and certain other liabilities.

Costs and fees totaling $74.4 million were incurred by the Company in conjunction with the Recapitalization.
The Company recorded $68.9 million of those costs that directly related to the issuance of debt as deferred financing
fees. Indirect expenses and other fees and expenses of $5.5 million not directly related to the issuance of debt were
expensed. In addition, the Company recorded $4.7 miltion of compensation expense for executive bonuses paid by
ACAB upon the closing of the Recapitalization, for a total of $10.3 million of Recapitalization expenses.

F-7




RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
The following table presents a reconciliation of the consideration paid to ACAB to the amount recorded in

accumulated deficit in the consolidated statements of stockholders’ deficit and comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2006:

(In 000s)

Base consideration paidto ACAB . . ... ... .. .., $ 3,220,521
Working capital adjustment (paid to ACAB in 2006 and 2007) .................. 52,395

Total consideration paid to ACAB . . ... ... .. .. . . . . 3,272.916
Repurchase of shares in connection with the Recapitalization. . ... ............... (1,032,486)
Contribution of Series A preferred stock from ACAB to the Company .. ........... (350,000)
Retief of intercompany debt with affiliate of ACAB .. ..., ... ... .. ............ (1,296,246)
Assumption by ACAB of certain liabilities of the Company. .. .................. (75,981)

Consideration paid 1o ACAB inexcessof bookvalue. ... ... ... ... ... ...... $ 518,203

In addition to the consideration noted above, the Company may be required to issue a contingent earn-out note
to Atlas pursuant to the Recapitalization Agreement if the Company achieves adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the
Recapitalization Agreement) of at least $880.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The maximum
amount of the earn-out note, if the Company achieves adjusted EBITDA of $1.015 billion or greater, is
$250.0 million. The issuance of the note would be recorded as an adjustment to accumulated deficit. The
contingent earn-out note will mature on the earlier of the date that is 11 years from issuance and the date that
is six months after the final maturity date of the longest dated debt of the Company with a principal amount in excess
of $100.0 million on the date of issuance of the contingent note. Interest will be added to principal semi-annually
and wili be payable at maturity. The interest rate will be compounded semi-annually and will equal the lesser of
11.5% per annum and the applicable federal rate plus 4.99% per annum.

Also pursuant to the Recapitalization Agreement, if the Company’s cumulative adjusted EBITDA (as defined
in the Recapitalization agreement) for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 had been
at least $1.54 billion, then the Company would have issued up to a $150.0 million contingent earn-out note in April
2008. The Company’s cumulative adjusted EBITDA did not meet the defined threshold, and an earn-out note will
not be issved.

If certain persons associated with the Sponsors cease to control 40% in the aggrepate of the number of shares of
common equity owned by the Spensors and their affiliates immediately after the closing of the Recapitalization, the
Company may be required to make semi-annual interest payments in connection with the earn-out notes up to an
amount calculated by formula as defined in the Recapitalization Agreement. Furthermore, if these conditions are
met, additional interest shall accrue at the semi-annual interest rate that, with semi-annual compounding, produces
an incremental annual yield to maturity of 1.50%. In addition, the Company may be required to prepay a portion of
the earn-out note if certain dividends, redemptions or other distributions are received that exceed pre-defined levels.

In December 2006, the Company sold to certain of its officers, or trusts of which its officers were beneficiaries,
RSC Holdings new common stock for an aggregate price of approximately $6.4 million.

Certain amounts in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.
Prior to the Recapitalization

Through November 26, 2006, the consolidated financial statements represent a carve-out of the activities of the
Company as they relate to RSC. The consolidated financia) starements exclude RSC’s Prime Energy division, which
was retained by Atlas as part of the Recapitalization, The historical financial statements of the Company include
investments in other consolidated or non-consolidated operations which are not included in these consolidated
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financial statements as such investments were retained by Atlas. The consolidated financial statements reflect
indebtedness with an affiliate in which interest charged may not be reflective of rates and terms and conditions
offered by a third party lender. Management believes the assumptions underlying the consolidated financial
statements are reasonable. However, the consolidated financial statements included hercin may not necessarily
reflect the Company’s results of operations, financial position and cash flows in the future or what its results of
operations, financial position and cash flows would have been had the Company been a stand-alone company during
the periods presented. :

All material intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management of the Company to make a
number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the
carrying amounts of long-lived assets, goodwill, and inventories; the allowance for doubtful accounts; deferred
income taxes: environmental liabilities; reserves for claims; assets and obligations related to employee benefits; the
fair value of derivative instruments and determination of share-based compensation amounts. Management believes
that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable in the circumstances; however, actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Cash Eguivalents’

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with insignificant interest rate risk and with maturities of
three months or less at purchase to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $8.6 million and $7.0 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Management develops its estimate of this allowance based on the
Company’s historical experience, its understanding of the Company’s current economic circumstances, and its own
judgment as to the likelihood of ultimate payment. The Company’s customer base is large and geographically
diverse. No single customer accounts for more than 2% of the Company’s total revenues in the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 or 2005 or more than 5% of total receivables at December 31, 2007 or December 31,
2006, Bad debt expense is reflected as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of income. Accounts receivable consist of the following at:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In 000s)
Trade receivables ... ..ottt e e $281,449  $270,707
Other receivables. . . o o oo e e e s e e e e, 11,719 4,654
Less allowance for doubtful accounts. .. ... .. ... . i (8,598) (6,978)
Accounts receivable, net . ... ... ... .o i e $284,570  $268,383

Rental Equipment

Rental equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the equipment using the
straight-line method. The range of estimated lives for rental equipment is one to ten years. Rental equipment 1§
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depreciated to a salvage value of zero to ten percent of cost. The incremental costs related to acquiring rental
equipment and subsequently renting such equipment are expensed as incurred. Ordinary repair and maintenance
costs are charged to operations as incurred. When rental fleet is disposed of, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from their respective accounts, and any gains or losses are included in gross profit.

The Company has factory-authorized arrangements for the refurbishment of certain equipment. The Company
continues to record depreciation expense while the equipment is out on refurbishment. The cost of refurbishment is
added to the existing net book value of the asset. The combined cost is depreciated over 48 months, The total net
book value of the equipment and the total refurbishment cost following completion of the refurbishment may not
exceed the equipment’s current fair value.

The following table provides a breakdown of rental equipment at:
December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
(In 000s)
Rental equipment. . ... ... ... i i e $2,748.656  $2,399,109
Less accumulated depreciation . .. .. ... . ... e s (819,142) (660,439)
Rental equipment, NEL. . . ... .. ittt ittt e $1,929,514  $1,738,670

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets ranging from three to thirty years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the life of the lease or life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Maintenance and repair costs are
charged to expense as incurred. Expenditures that increase productivity or extend the life of an asset are capitalized.
Upon disposal, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective accounts, and any
gains or losses are included in operating expenses.

Property and equipment consists of the following at:
December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
{In 000s)

Leased eqUipment - .. ..........uruvinruerennnnrerannennnns $ 215,988 $ 190,076
Buildings and leasehold improvements . ... ........ .. ........... 50,621 43,800
Non-rental machinery and equipment . ... ............ ... ... .... 37,546 32,529
Data processing hardware and purchased software. . .. ............. 18,024 13,237
Furniture and fIXtuTes . . . ... ..ot e 11,022 9,931
Construction in progress. . ........ vt 4,600 4,183
Land and improvements . . .. .. ... i e e 714 714

- 338,515 294,470
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . .. ............... (146,614) {124,278)
Property and equipment, net. ... ...ttt it $ 191,901 $ 170,192

Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill

Long-lived assets such as rental equipment and property and equipment are measured for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
If an impairment indicator is present, the Company evaluates recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount
of the assets to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If the assets are impaired, the
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impairment recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the
assets. Fair value is generally determined by estimates of discounted cash flows. The Company recognized no
impairment of long-lived assets in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Goodwill was $925.6 million at both December 31, 2007 and 2006. The Company reviews the carrying value
of goodwill for impairment annually during the fourth quarter, and whenever an impairment indicator is identified.
Based on the Company’s analyses, there was no impairment of goodwill in connection with the annual impairment
tests that were performed during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The goodwill impairment test involves a two-step approach. Under the first step, the Company determines the
fair value of each reporting unit to which goodwill has been assigned. The Company compares the fair value of the
reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. The Company estimates the fair values of its reporting units
utilizing an income approach valuation. If the estimated fair value exceeds the carrying value, no impairment loss is
recognized. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value, goodwill is considered potentially impaired and the second
step is completed in order to measure the impairment loss. Under the second step, the Company calculates the
implied fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of all tangible and intangible net assets, including any
unrecognized intangible assets, of the reporting unit from the fair value of the reporting unit as determined in the
first step. The Company then compares the implied fair value of goodwill to the carrying value of goodwill. If the
implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equal to
the difference.

Reserves for Claims

The Company’s insurance program for general liability, automobile, workers’ compensation and pollution
claims involves deductibles or self-insurance, with varying risk retention levels. Claims in excess of these risk
retention levels are covered by insurance up to policy limits. The Company is fully self-insured for medical claims.
The Company’s excess loss coverage for general liability, automobile, workers’ compensation and pollution claims
starts at $1.0 million, $1.5 million, $.5 million and $.25 million, respectively. With the exception of pollution
claims, this coverage was in effect for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 and the year ended
December 31, 2006. The coverage for pollution claims has been effective since the Recapitalization. The Company
establishes reserves for reported claims that are asserted and for claims that are believed to have been incurred but
not yet reported. These reserves reflect an estimate of the amounts that the Company will be required to pay in
connection with these claims. The estimate of reserves is based upon assumptions relating to the probability of
losses and historical settlement experience. These estimates may change based on, among other events, changes in
claims history or receipt of additional information relevant to assessing the claims. Furthermore, these estimates
may prove to be inaccurate due to factors such as adverse judicial determinations or settlements at higher than
estimated amounts. Accordingly, the Company may be required to increase or decrease the reserves.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiary are translated into U.S. dollars in accordance
with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation. Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiary are translated into U.S. dollars
at year-end exchange rates. Revenue and expense items are translated at the average rates prevailing during the
period. Resulting translation adjustments are included in stockholders’ deficit as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income. Income and losses that result from foreign currency transactions are included in earnings.
The Company recognized $1.1 million, $311,000 and $100,000 of foreign currency transaction gains for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company accounts for derivative instruments and hedging activities in accordance with SFAS No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended. In accordance with this standard, the
Company's derivative financial instruments are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair
value of the Company’s derivatives, which are designated as cash flow hedges, are recorded in other comprehensive
income, to the extent the hedges are highly effective. Ineffective portions of cash flow hedges, if any, are recognized
in current period earnings in interest expense. Hedge effectiveness is calculated by comparing the fair value of the
derivative to a hypothetical derivative that would be a perfect hedge of the hedged transaction. Other comprehensive
income or loss is reclassified into current period earnings when the hedged transaction affects earnings.

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive income and accumulated other comprehensive in accordance with
SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of accu-
mulated foreign currency translation adjustments and the highly effective portion of the changes in the fair value of
designated cash flow hedges.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties. The fair values of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate
carrying values due to the short maturity of these financial instruments. The fair values of the Senior ABL Facilities
and the Senior Term Facilities approximate the carrying value of these financial instruments due to the fact that
these instruments include provisions to adjust interest rates based on market conditions. The fair value of the Senior
Notes was approximately $551.8 million based on market prices at December 31, 2007. The fair value liability of
the Company’s interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2007 totaled $15.7 million based on current market pricing
models.

Revenue Recognition

The Company rents equipment primarily to the nonresidential construction and industrial markets. The
Company records unbilled revenue for revenues earned each reporting period which have not yet been billed to the
customer. Rental contract terms may be daily, weekly, or monthly and may extend across financial reporting
periods. Rental revenue is recognized over the applicable rental period.

The Company recognizes revenue on used equipment and merchandise sales when title passes to the customer,
the customer takes ownership, assumes risk of loss, and collectibility is reasonably assured. There are no rights of
return or warranties offered on product sales.

The Company recognizes both net and gross re-rent revenue. The Company has entered into alliance
agreements with certain suppliers whereby the Company will rent equipment from the supplier and subsequently
re-rent such equipment to a customer. Under the alliance agreements, the collection risk from the end user is passed
to the original supplier and revenue is presented on a net basis under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent. When no alliance agreement
exists, re-rent revenue is presented on a gross basis.

Sales tax amounts collected from customers are recorded on a net basis.

Marketing and Advertising costs

The Company advertises primarily through trade publications and yellow pages. These costs are charged in the
period incurred. Marketing and advertising costs are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
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accompanying consolidated statements of income. Marketing and advertising expense, net of qualifying cooper-
ative advertising reimbursements under EITF No. 02-16, Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for
Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor (“EITF No. 02-16") was $10.0 million, $9.9 million, and
$10.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Income Taxes

Prior to the Recapitalization, RSC Holdings had other lines of businesses and the consolidated tax return of
RSC Holdings for those periods included the results from those other lines of businesses. The Company’s income
taxes as presented in the condensed consolidated financial statements for the period prior to the Recapitalization are
calculated on a separate tax return basis that does not include the results from those other lines of businesses. Under
ACAB’s ownership, RSC Holdings managed its tax position for the benefit of its entire portfolio of businesses, and
its tax strategies were not necessarily reflective of the tax strategies that the Company would have followed or does
follow as a stand-alone company.

Income taxes are accounted for under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS No. 1097), as
interpreted by Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB™) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”). Under SFAS No. 109, deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences of
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the respective tax bases of assets and liabilities
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets when
realization of such assets is not considered to be more likely than not. Adjustments to the deferred income tax
vatuation allowance are made periodically based on management’s assessment of the recoverability of the related
assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in the tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date.

Consideration Received from Vendors

The Company receives money from suppliers for various programs, primarily volume incentives and
advertising. Allowances for advertising to promote a vendor’s products or services which meet the criteria in
EITF No. 02-16 are offset against advertising costs in the period in which the Company recognizes the incremental
advertising cost. In situations when vendor consideration does not meet the criteria in EITF No. 02-16 to be offset
against advertising costs, the Company considers the consideration to be a reduction in the purchase price of rental
equipment acquired. -

Volume incentives are deferred and amortized as dn offset to depreciation expense over 36 months, which
approximates the average period of ownership of the rental equipment purchased from vendors who provide the
Company with rebates and other incentives.

Share-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company applied the intrinsic value based method of accounting prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
interpretations including FASB Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock
Compensation, an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25, to account for share appreciation rights issued by
ACAB 1o selected key employees of the Company. '

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the modified prospective method of SFAS 123 (revised
2004), Share Based Payment. Under that method, the Company recognizes compensation expense for new share-
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based awards, awards modified after the effective date, and the remaining portion of the fair value of the unvested
awards at the adoption date based on grant date fair values. See Note 15 for further discussion.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, FASB issued FIN 48. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and
also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company
adopted FIN 48 January 1, 2007. The Company did not recognize an increase or decrease in the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the implementation of FIN 48. See Note 9 for additional information.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 108, Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Starements. SAB 108 requires
analysis of misstatements using both an income statement (rollover) approach and a balance sheet (iron curtain)
approach in assessing materiality and provides for a one-time cumulative effect transition adjustment. SAB 108 is
only effective for public companies. The Company adopted SAB 108 upon becoming a public company. The
adoption did not have an impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial pesition or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157"). This
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. This pronounce-
ment applies to other accounting standards that require or permit fair value measurements. Accordingly, this
statement does not require any new fair value measurement. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. However, on December 14, 2007, the FASB issued proposed FASB Staff Position (“FSP™)
FAS 157-b which would delay the effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities,
except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least
annually). This proposed FSP partially defers the effective date of Statement 157 to fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP. Effective
for 2008, the Company will adopt SFAS 157 except as it applies to those nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities as noted in proposed FSP FAS | 57-b. The partial adoption of SFAS 157 will not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“SFAS No. 159}, This statement permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments at fair value. A business entity shall report unrealized gains
and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.
The Company will be required to adopt SFAS No. 159 in the first quarter of the year ending December 31, 2008. The
adoption of SFAS No. 159 will not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial position
or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued a revision to SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (*SFAS No. 141R™).
SFAS No. 141R revises the accounting for business combinations. Under SFAS No. 141R, an acquiring entity will
be required to recognize the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition-date fair value
with limited exceptions. Specifically, SFAS No. 141R will change the accounting for: acquisition costs, non-
controlling interests, acquired contingent liabilities, in-process research and development, restructuring costs
associated with a combination and certain tax-related items, as well as require additional disclosures.
SFAS No. 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. The Company would be required to apply SFAS No. 141R to any acquisitions subsequent to
December 31, 2008.
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(3) Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted net income per common share is presented in conformity with SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per
Share (“SFAS No. 128”). In accordance with SFAS No. 128, basic net income per common share has been
computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net
income per common share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period, increased to give effect to any potentially dilutive securities. Additionally, for
purposes of calculating basic and diluted net income per common share, net income has been adjusted for preferred
stock dividends.

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net income per common share:
Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In 000s except per share data)

Nurmerator:

NEL IMCOIMIE . .\ o ottt ettt ee et a e n i maaanaaas e aees $123,254 $186,522  $164,197

Less preferred dividends ... ....... ... .. i — (7,997) (15,995)

Net income available for common stockholders .. ................ $123,254 §178,525 $148,202
Denominator:

Weighted average shares—basic. . .. ... .. ... ol 98,237 307,845 330,697

Employee Stock OpHONS. . ... ..o vviin i e 1,395 -— —

Total weighted average shares —diluted .. .................. ... 99,632 307,845 330,697
Net income per common share ~—basic. ........ ... ..ot $ 125 § 058 § 045
Net income per common share —diluted .. ............ . $ 124 $ 058 % 045
Anti-dilutive securities excluded .. . ... ... oo 473 —_ —

Weighted average shares outstanding were significantly reduced in 2007 as a result of our Recapitalization.

(4) Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following at:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In 000s)
Compensation-related accruals. ... ... ..oo v $ 34629 3 28815
Accrued income and Other tAXES . . v . v v o v it v e i ertnecn s easnns 46,328 74,116
Reserves for Claims . . . . v ottt et st esa et ea s e 35,580 35,940
Accrued interest payable . .. ... ... .. L 41,249 19,095
Interest rate swap Hability ... ... ... o i i 15,740 —
(01 17 o OGO 6,350 6,030
0 71 [ $179,876  $163,996
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(5) Debt

Debt consists of the following at:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In 000s)
Senior ABL revolving credit facility . . ... ............... ... .... $ 828,600 $ 878,291
Senior ABLtermloan ... ... ... ... 246,875 249,375
Senior Term Facility . ... ... ... ... . . . 899,300 1,130,000
Senior NOtes . ... i e 620,000 620,000
Capitalized lease obligations ... ......... ... ... ............... 142,007 128,688
Other. . . e e 43 72
Total .. e e $2,736,225  $3,006,426

The required principal payments for all borrowings for each of the five years following the balance sheet date
are as follows (in D00s)(a):

2008 ... . e et e e e $ 36,151
20000 L e e e e 34,108
2000 . e e e e 29,319
2000 L e e e 851,004
7.1 251,391
B ¢ 1= (T 1 =) R 1,534,252

B o | $2,736,225

(a) The required principal payments presented above do not give effect to the contingent earn-out note discussed in
Note 1.

Senior ABL Facilities. As of November 27, 2006, in connection with the Recapitalization, RSC and certain
of its parent companies and subsidiaries, as borrower, entered into a senior secured asset based credit facility with
Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch (“DBNY”"), as administrative agent and collateral agent, Citicorp North
America, Inc. as syndication agent, and the other financial institutions party thereto from time to time. The facility
consists of a $1,450,0 million revolving credit facility and a term loan facility in the initial amount of $250.0 million.
The revolving loans under the Senior ABL Facilities mature five years from the Recapitalization closing date. The
term loans under the Senior ABL Facilities amortize in equal quarterly installments of one percent of the aggregate
principal amount thereof per annum until its maturity date, November 30, 2012, at which time the remaining
balance is due.

At the Company’s election, the interest rate per annum applicable to the loans under the Senior ABL Facilities
are based on a fluctuating rate of interest measured by reference to either adjusted LIBOR, plus a borrowing margin;
or, an alternate base rate plus a borrowing margin, As of December 31, 2007, the interest rate on the Senior ABL
Facilities was 7.0%.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $474.0 million available on the Senior ABL revolving credit
facility. A portion of the revolving loan facility is available for swingline loans and for the issuance of letters of
credit. The Company will pay fees on the unused commitments of the lenders under the revolving loan facility; a
letter of credit fee on the outstanding stated amount of letters of credit plus facing fees for the letter of credit issuing
banks and any other customary fees.
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The Senior ABL Facilities contain covenants that, among other things, limit or restrict the ability of the
Company to incur indebtedness; provide guarantees; engage in mergers, acquisitions or dispositions; enter into sale-
leaseback transactions; and make dividends and other restricted payments. In addition, under the Senior ABL
Facilities, upon excess availability falling below certain levels, the borrowers will be required to comply with
specified financial ratios and tests, including a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and a maximum leverage ratio.
The Company is currently in compliance with the covenants related to the Senior ABL Facilities.

Senior Term Faciliry. In connection with the Recapitalization, the Company, as borrower, entered into a
$1,130.0 million senior secured second-lien term loan facility with DBNY, as administrative agent and collateral
agent, Citigroup, as syndication agent, General Electric Capital Corporation, as co-documentation agent and the
other financial institution as party thereto from time to time. The Senior Term Facility matures seven years from the
Recapitalization closing date.

At the Company’s election, the interest rate per annum applicable to the Senior Term Facility is based on a
fluctuating rate of interest measured by reference to either adjusted LIBOR, plus a borrowing margin; or an alternate
base rate plus a borrowing margin. As of December 31, 2007, the interest rate on the Senior Term Facility was 8.8%.

The Senior Term Facility contains a number of covenants substantiaily identical to, but no more restrictive
than, the covenants contained in the Senior ABL Facilities. However, under the Senior Term Facility, the borrowers
are not required to comply with covenants relating to borrowing base reporting or to specified financial maintenance
covenants.

In May 2007, $230.7 million of indebtedness under the Company’s Senior Term Facility and an associated
prepayment penalty of $4.6 million were paid with the net proceeds from the initial public offering of RSC Holdings
common stock. Additionally, in connection with the repayment of $230.7 million of indebtedness under the
Company’s Senior Term facility, $5.0 million of deferred financing costs related to the debt repayment were
expensed.

In September 2007, the Company entered into four forward-siarting interest rate swap agreements covering a
combined notional amount of debt totaling of $700.0 million. The objective of the swaps is to effectively hedge the
cash flow risk associated with a portion of the Senior Term Facility, which has a variable interest rate. See Note 6 for
additional information.

Senior Notes. Inconnection with the recapitalizatidn. RSC and RSC Holdings, II1 LLC issued $620.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 9%% senior notes due 2014, Interest on the Senior Notes is paid semi-annually, on
June 1 and December 1 in each year and the Senior Notes mature December 1, 2014,

The Senior Notes are redeemable, at the Company’s option, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to
time on and after December 1, 2010 at the applicable redemption price set forth below:

Redemption Period Price
2010 _ 104.750%
2011 . 102.375%

2012 and thereafter 100.000%

In addition, at any time on or prior to December 1, 2009, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the original
aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes, with funds in an equal aggregate amount up to the aggregate
proceeds of certain equity offerings of the Company, at a redemption price of 109.5%.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes contain covenants that, among other things, limit the Company’s
ability to incur additional indebtedness or issue preferred shares; pay dividends on or make other distributions in
respect to capital stock or other restricted payments; make certain investments; and sell certain assets.
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In accordance with the registration rights agreement, dated as of November 27, 2006, entered into in
connection with the issuance on November 27, 2006 by RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. and RSC Holdings III,
LLC of their 9%4% Senior Notes due 2014 (the “old notes™) in a transaction exempt from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, RSC Equipment Rental, Inc. and RSC Holdings III, LLC completed an
exchange offer in the quarter ended September 30, 2007 pursuant to which they offered to exchange $620,000,000
in aggregate principal amount of their 9% Senior Notes due 2014 (the “new notes™), which were registered under
the Securities Act, for equal principal amounts of their outstanding old notes. The terms of the new notes are
substantially identical to those of the old notes, except that the transfer restrictions and registration rights relating to
the old notes do not apply to the new notes.

The Company continues to be in compliance with all applicable debt covenants as of December 31, 2007.

Contingent earn-out note,  RSC Holdings may be required to issue a contingent earn-out note to Atlas of up to
$250.0 million pursuant to the Recapitalization Agreement if RSC achieves adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the
Recapitalization Agreement) of at least $880.0 million for the year ended December 21, 2008. The maximum
amount of the earn-out note, if the Company achieves adjusted EBITDA of $1.015 billion or greater, is
$250.0 million. The issuance of the note would be recorded as an adjustment to accumulated deficit.

Capital leases. Capital lease obligations consist of vehicle leases with periods expiring at various dates
through 20135. The interest rate is the same for all units and is subject to change on a monthly basis. The monthly
interest rate for December 2007 was 4.6%.

Deferred financing costs are amortized through interest expense over the respective terms of the debt
instruments using the effective interest method.

(6) Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivatives (o mitigate the interest rate risk on a portion of its variable-rate borrowings in
order to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from changes in interest rates. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company entered into four forward-starting interest rate swap agreements in September 2007 under which
it exchanged benchmark floating-rate interest payments for fixed-rate interest payments. The agreements are
intended to hedge only the benchmark portion of interest associated with a portion of the Senior Term Facility.
Interest on this debt is based on a fluctuating rate of interest measured by reference to a benchmark interest rate, plus
a borrowing margin, which is 3.5%. The agreements cover a combined notional amount of debt totaling
$700.0-million, of which $500.0 million is for a five year period with a weighted average fixed interest rate of
4.7%, and $200.0 million is for a three year period with a weighted average fixed interest rate of 4.6%. The swaps
were effective on October 3, 2007 and are settled on a quarterly basis.

The Company has determined that the swap agreements qualify as effective cash flow hedges. Accordingly, the
fair value of the liability for the interest rate swap agreements of $15.7 million at December 31, 2007 was recorded
in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet, with the offset, net of income tax effects,
included in accumulated other comprehensive income. The effective portion of the change in fair value is included
in comprehensive income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007. Other comprehensive income or loss is
reclassified into current period earnings when the hedged transaction affects earnings, The ineffective portions of
the change in the fair market value is recognized in earnings in interest expense, The ineffective portions of changes
in the fair market value of the derivatives has been immaterial to date.
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(7 Comprehensive Income

Accumulated comprehensive income components as of December 31, 2007 were as follows:
Foreign Currency Fair Market Value of Accumulated Other

Translation Cash Flow Hedge Comprehensive Income
(In 000s)
Batance at December 31, 2006. ... .. $ 8,784 5 — $ 8,784
Foreign currency translation . . ... ... 12,914 — 12,914
Change in fair value of cash flow
hedges, netoftax.............. — (9,495} (9,493)
Balance at December 31, 2007 . ... .. $21,698 $(9,495) $12,203

(8) Common and Preferred Stock
Common Stock

In the Recapitalization, the Company initially repurchased 317,669,667 shares, or approximately 96.1%, of its
outstanding shares of common stock (the “Repurchased Shares™), with Atlas retaining 13,027,380 shares of
common stock. Subsequently, 241,036,478 shares of the Repurchased Shares were cancelled. The Company then
sold the remaining 76,633,189 of the Repurchased Shares to the Sponsors for $500.0 million, net of a partial return
of equity to the Sponsors of $40.0 million. As a result of these transactions, the Company had 89,660,569 shares of
common stock outstanding, with the Sponsors holding 76,633,189 shares, or 85.5%, of the Company’s common
stock, and Atlas retaining 13,027,380 shares, or 14.5%, of the Company's shares of common stock. At December 31,
2007, the Sponsors each owned 33.7% of the Company and Atlas owned 11.5% of the Company.

After the Recapitalization, the Company amended its charter to authorize 300,000,000 shares of no par value
common stock and to reclassify each of its outstanding shares of common stock into 100 shares of common stock.
The common stock certificates were then cancelled and upon presentation of the cancelled shares to the Company,
new certificates were issued representing the shares of common stock into which such cancelled shares have been
converted and reclassified.

In December 2006, RSC Holdings sold to certain of its officers, or trusts of which its officers were
beneficiaries, 987,022 shares of RSC Holdings new common stock for an aggregate price of approximately
$6.4 million,

In May 2007, RSC Holdings completed an initial public offering of its common stock. The number of common
shares offered was 20,833,333. Of these shares, 12,500,000 were new shares offered by RSC Holdings and
8,333,333 were shares offered by certain of its current shareholders. RSC Holdings did not receive any of the
proceeds from the sale of the shares by the Sponsors and ACF. The common shares were offered at a price of $22.00
per share. Net proceeds to the Company from this offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and estimated
offering expenses were $255.1 million. RSC Holdings used the net proceeds from this offering to repay
$230.7 million of the Company’s Senior Term Facility and an associated prepayment penalty of $4.6 million,
and a termination fee of $20.0 million related to terminating the monitoring agreement with the Sponsors.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, RSC Holdings reduced its outstanding shares by an aggregate of 16
fractional shares of its common stock that arose due to fractions created as a result of the 37.435 for 1 stock split
effected on May 18, 2007.

Preferred Stock '

The Company had 200 authorized shares of Series A preferred stock, of which 154 shares were issued and
outstanding with an affiliate. Holders of the Sertes A preferred stock were entitled to receive dividends when
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declared by the Board. These shares were cancelled as part of the Recapitalization in November 2006. As part of the
Recapitalization, the Board of Directors authorized 500,000 shares of new preferred stock, of which none were
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007,
(%) Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In 000s)
Domestic federal:
01Ty 1| P $31,661 $ 53412 $ 9,899
Deferred ... ... . . . e e 31,057 46,428 72,150

62,718 99,840 82,049
Domestic state

CUITENT .« . ... e e e e 5,661 12,722 8,784
Deferred . ... ... .. . e 3,132 739 (1,275)
Total domestic ....... ... .00 71,511 113,301 89,558
Foreign federal:
L) o (-1 1 6,413 3,349 2,705
Deferred . ... .. . 1,336 1,201 1,337
Total foreign .., ... ... .. . e 7,749 4,640 4,042

$79,260 $117,941  $93,600

Prior to the Recapitalization, RSC Holdings had other lines of businesses and the consolidated tax return of
RSC Holdings for those periods included the results from those other lines of business. The Company’s income
taxes as presented in the consolidated financial statements are calculated on a separate tax return basis that does not
include the results from those other lines of businesses. The Company was required to assess its deferred tax assets
(including net operating loss and alternative minimum tax loss carryforwards) and the need for a valuation
allowance on a separate return basis, even though at December 31, 2007 and 2006 no such loss carryforwards
existed at the RSC Holdings consolidated level, since those assets have been utilized by other members within the
consolidated tax return. Upon the Company’s separation, as a result of the Recapitalization, those assets were
treated as an intercompany balance and eliminated. This assessment required judgment on the part of management
with respect to benefits that could be realized from future income, as well as other positive and negative factors.

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal
income tax rate of 35% to income before provision for income taxes is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In 000s)
Computed tax at stattory tax rate . ............coouinnnn.. $70,880 $106,562 390,229
Permanent items . ... .. ... ... ... ..t 793 875 (4,938)
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit .. .............. 7,152 12,559 4,881
Difference between federal statutory and foreign tax rate ., ... .. (323) (208) {61)
Change in valuation allowance . . . ........................ — —_ (1,486)
(0311 P 758 (1,847) 4,975
Provision fOr iNCOME 1AXES . « « v v v v e e e e e e e ee e e e e e eeeseann s $79,260  $117941  $93,600




RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Company’s investment in its foreign subsidiary is permanently invested abroad and will not be repatriated
to the U.S. in the foreseeable future. In accordance with APB Opinion No. 23, Accounting for Income Taxes —
Special Areas, because those earnings are considered to be indefinitely reinvested, no U.S. federal or state deferred
income taxes have been provided thereon. Total undistributed earnings at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were
$43.7 million and $28.1 million, respectively. Upon distribution of those earnings, in the form of dividends or
otherwise, the Company would be subject to both U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax
credits) and withholding taxes payable to the foreign country.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are as follows at:

December 31,
! 2007 2006
(In 000s)
Deferred tax assets:

ACCTUALS . . e e e e e e e $ 25,845 § 20,080
Federal tax benefit of state TESEIVES . . . . . . i ittt ne et e e 1,087 —
Deferred financing costs {derivative) .. ........ ... ... .. ... .. ... 6,071 —
Total deferred 1ax a8S8LS . . .. . v v it ittt e e e 33,003 20,080

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles .. ... ... . e 38,555 29,942
Capitalized leases .. ....... ... i i 8,609 7178
Property and equipment . . ... ... .. ... . .. 303,326 271,770
FOTei N . . o e 6,403 5,271
Total deferred tax liabilities . ... ... ..., 356,953 314,161
Net deferred tax liability . ....... ... ... 0. $323,950  $294,081

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or alt of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible,
management believes it 15 more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible
differences. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term
if estimates of future taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various states and Canadian
jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax
examinations by tax authorities for years before 1999. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to
Canadian income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2003. In 2006, the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS™Y commenced an examination of the Company’s federal income tax returns for tax year 2005. This
examination was completed during the year ended December 31, 2007, During 2007 the IRS proposed certain
adjustments to the Company’s tax positions. The result of these adjustments was that an additional payment of
$4.8 million was made during 2007 and the Company was fully indemnified by Atlas for such payment as explained
below. In addition, the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits and accrued interest and penalties were decreased by
approximately $23.0 million and $7.8 million respectively during 2007 as a result of the completion of the 2005 IRS
audit. These reductions resulted in a correspending decrease to its receivable from Atlas, as explained below. In
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addition, the Company’s Canadian operating subsidiary is currently under examination for tax years 2003 through
2005 and the IRS has commenced an audit of the Company’s federal income tax retum for the year ended
D_ecember 31, 2006.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The Company did not recognize an
increase or decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the implementation of FIN 48. The
total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the date of adoption and as of December 31, 2007 was
approximately $40.0 million and $21.8 million, respectively. Of the unrecognized tax benefits $4.5 million, if
recognized, would affect the effective tax rate. The Company does not anticipate that the total amount of
unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change over the next twelve months.

The total amount of accrued interest and penalties as of the date of adoption and as of December 31, 2007 was
approximately $9.2 million and $4.5 million, respectively.

Unrecognized

Tax Benefits

{In millions)
Balance at January 1, 2007 . . .. .. .. . e e $40.0
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year ... ........... ... ..., 4.8
Reductions for tax positions related of prioryears . .. .......... .. .. oo (23.0}
Balance at December 31, 2007 . . ...t e et $218

Unrecognized tax benefits and associated interest and penalties of $49.2 million as of the date of adoption and
$21.3 million of the unrecognized tax benefits and associated interest and penalties as of December 31, 2007 are
indemnified by Atlas through a separate agreement with Atlas (“Indemnified Positions”). The Company has
established a receivable on its financial statements for an amount equal to the amount of Indemnified Positions. Any
future increase or decrease to the Indemnified Positions would result in a corresponding increase or decrease to its
receivable balance from Atlas (“Indemnification Receivable™) and would not have an effect on the Company’s
income tax expense Unrecognized tax benefits and the associated interest and penalties of $5.0 million as of
December 31, 2007 are uncertain tax positions not related to the Indemnified Positions (“Un-indemnified
Positions™), interest and penalties associated with the Un-indemnified Positions are recorded as part of income
tax expense.

{10y Commitments and Contingencies

At December 31, 2007, the Company had total available irrevocable letters of credit facilities outstanding of
$132.3 million. Such irrevocable commercial and standby letters of credit facilities support various agreements,
leases, and insurance policies. The total outstanding letters of credit include amounts with various suppliers that
guarantee payment of rental equipment purchases upon reaching the specified payment date.

The Company is subject to various laws and related regulations governing environmental matters. Under such
laws, an owner or lessee of real estate may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of certain hazardous or
toxic substances located on or in, or emanating from, such property, as well as investigation of property damage.
The Company incurs ongoing expenses and records applicable accruals associated with the removal of underground
storage tanks and the performance of appropriate remediation at certain of its locations. The Company believes that
such removal and remediation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

F-22




RSC HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
(11) Leases

Included in property and equipment in the consolidated balance sheets are the following assets held under
capital leases at:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In 000s)
Leased equipment . . ... oot et e e $215988  $190,076
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. . ... ................. (71,236) (60,088}
Leased eqUIPMENT . . .. oottt ittt e e $144,752 $129,988

Capital lease obligations consist primarily of vehicle leases with periods eéxpiring at various dates through
2015 at variable interest rates. Capital lease obligations amounted to $142.0 million and $128.7 million at
December 31, 2007, and 20006, respectively.

The Company alse rents equipment, real estate and certain office equipment under operating leases. Certain
real estate leases require the Company to pay maintenance, insurance, taxes and certain other expenses in addition
to the stated rentals. Lease expense under operating leases amounied to $46.0 million, $41.0 million, and
$39.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments, by year and in the aggregate, for noncancelable capital and operating leases
with initial or remaining terms of one year or more are as follows at:

December 31,
Capital Operating
Leases Leases
(In 000s)
2008 . . e e e $ 39278 §$ 47,179
2000 . . e e 35,740 41,217
2010 . L e e e e 29,605 33,492
1 22,229 24,924
20k . e e e e e 15,470 14,489
Thereafter . . ... ..., e e e 15,473 11,398
Total minimum lease payments . ........ ... ... ..o uoriumaan... $157,795  $172,699
Less amount representing interest (4.62% at December 2007)............ 15,788
Capital lease obligations . .. ......... .. .. ... iiinrinraaanrnrnn $142,007

The Company has a variety of real estate leases that contain rent escalation clauses. The Company records the
related rental expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term and records the difference between the amount
charged to expense and the rent paid as a deferred rent liability. The balance of the deferred rent liability amounted
to $.9 million and $1.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

(12) Legal and Insurance Matters

The Company is party to legal proceedings and potential claims arising in the ordinary course of its business. In
the opinion of management, the Company has adequate legal defenses, reserves, and insurance coverage with
respect 10 these matters so that the ultimate resolution will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. The Company has recorded accrued liabilities of $35.6 mil-
lion and $35.9 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, to cover the uninsured portion of estimated
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costs arising from these pending claims and other potential unasserted claims, The Company records claim
recoveries from third parties when such recoveries are certain of being collected.

(13) Affiliated Company Transactions

Sales and rentals to affiliated companies of $134,000, $125,000, and $177,000 in 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively, are included in revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Rental equipment
and other purchases from affiliated companies were $24.3 million, $41.2 miilion, and $50.5 million in 2007, 2006,
and 2003, respectively. Affiliated payables were $11.2 million and $15.1 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Included in accounts payables at December 31, 2006 is an $18.0 million payable to Atlas related to a
working capital adjustment in conjunction with the Recapitalization.

As part of the Recapitalization, Atlas assumed certain liabilities of the Company existing on the closing date,
including tax liabilities for personal property and real estate, Additionally, Atlas agreed to indemnify the Company
of any and all liabilities for income taxes which are impoesed on the Company for a taxable period prior to the closing
date of the Recapitalization. As the legal obligation for any such payments still resides with the Company, on the
date of the Recapitalization the Company recorded a receivable for any recorded liabilities to be paid by Atlas. At
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had receivables of $21.3 million and $70.3 million, respectively, for
such amounts, which are recorded within other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, Atlas paid $6.7 million on the Company’s behalf and the
Company received $6.9 million from Atlas in conjunction with items paid directly by the Company. These amounts
had been included in the December 31, 2006 Indemnification Receivable. Additionally, the Company recorded a
$4.5 million capital contribution for an additional indemnification payment received from Atlas related to the
modification of certain software agreements pursuant to the Recapitalization.

On the Recapitalization closing date, the Company entered into a monitoring agreement with the Sponsors,
pursuant to which the Sponsors would provide the Company with financial, management advisory and other
services. The agreement was terminated on May 29, 2007 upon the closing of the Company’s initial public offering.
During the years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the Company paid $23.0 million and
$0.6 million, respectively, to the Sponsors under the monitoring agreement. Included in the 2007 amount is a
termination fee of $20.0 million that RSC Holdings paid to the Sponsors in connection with the closing of the initial
public offering of RSC Holdings common stock on May 29, 2007, to terminate this monitoring agreement.
Additionally, upon termination of the monitoring agreement, the Company entered into a cost reimbursement
agreement with the Sponsors pursuant to which they will be reimbursed for expenses incurred in connection with
their provision of certain advisory and other services. Through December 31, 2007 the Company has paid the
Sponsors approximately $94,000 under this agreement.

(14) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company currently sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan that is subject to the provisions of ERISA,
The Company also sponsors a defined contribution pension plan for the benefit of full-time employees of its
Canadian subsidiary. Under these plans, the Company matches a percentage of the participants’ contributions up to
a specified amount. Company contributions to the plans were $6.6 million, $4.7 million, and $3.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The Company sponsors a deferred compensation plan whereby amounts earned and contributed by an
employee are invested and held in a Company created “rabbi trust”. Rabbi trusts are employee directed and
administered by a third party. As the assets of the trust are available to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the
event of Company bankruptcy, under EITF No. 97-14, Accounting for Deferred Compensation Arrangements
Where Amounts Earned Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested, the amounts held in the trust are accounted for as an
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investment and a correspending deferred liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and amounted
to $3.2 million and $2.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

(15) Share-Based Compensation Plans

On Janvary 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Fayment
(“SFAS No. 123R"), which replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 123")
and supersedes APB 25. SFAS No. 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options, to be recognized as compensation expense over the requisite service period (generally the
vesting period) in the consolidated financial statements based on their fair values. The Company did not grant any
employee stock options prior to the Recapitalization in November 2006. Prior to the Recapitalization, certain
employees were eligible to receive share appreciation rights (“SARS”) for ACAB A-shares. SARS do not entitle the
holder to acquire shares, but only to receive the difference between the price of ACAB’s A-shares at exercise and the
price determined at the grant date. As of January 1, 2006, the SARS were substantially vested. The adoption of
SFAS No. 123R did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based employee compensation using the intrinsic
value method under the recognition and measurement principles of APB 25 as interpreted by FASB Interpretation
No. 28, Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans, an inter-
pretation of APB Opinions No. 15 and 235.

Share Appreciation Rights

SARS were offered each year from 2000 to 2003. No SARS have been granted since 2003. SARS were
formally granted and issued by ACAB, have a term of six years from the grant date and vest at rates of one-third per
year at each anniversary of the grant date. The exercise price/grant price 1s equal to 110% of the average share price
during a limited period before the grant date. There are no performance conditions required to earn the award.

Prior to the Recapitalization, the cash payments to employees upon exercise of the SARS were reimbursed by
ACAB and, accordingly, were reflected as capital contributions in the consolidated statements of stockholders’
equity (deficit) and comprehensive income. As part of the terms of the Recapitalization, ACAB agreed to assume
the remaining liability of SARS payments and directly pay the employees upon exercise.

SARS expense for 2006 and 2005 was $1.7 million and $3.1 million, respectively. At December 31, 2006, the
SARS were fully vested.

Stock Incentive Plan

After the Recapitalization, RSC Holdings adopted the RSC Holdings Inc. Amended and Restated Stock
Incentive Plan, (the “Plan™) which provides for the grant of non qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance stock, performance units deferred shares and may offer common
shares for purchase by the Company’s eligible employees and directors. The Board of Directors administers the
Plan, which was adopted in December 2006 and amended and restated in May 2007. There are 7,382,943 shares of
common stock authorized under the plan of which 1,488,543 remain available at December 31, 2007. The exercise
price for stock options granted under the Plan will be no less than market value on the date of grant. Options granted
under the Plan generally vest ratably over a four or five-year vesting period and have a ten-year contractual term. In
addition to the service based options, RSC Holdings also granted performance based options in 2006 with
equivalent terms to those described above except that the annual vesting is contingent on the Company achieving
certain defined performance targets.

The fair values of option awards are estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that uses the
assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on the historical stock price volatility of
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comparable companies. Expected term, which represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be
outstanding, is estimated using expected term data disclosed by comparable companies. Groups of employees that
are expected to have similar exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. The risk-free
interest rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve.

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006
Expected volatility . .. ... . o e 40.0% 45.8%
Dividend vield . . . .. . ... ... e — —
Expected term (in yars). . ... . ... o i 4.2 5.0
Risk-free Interest Late . . .. . ittt ettt et e 39% 4.5%
Weighted average prant date fair value of options granted ... .............. $5.19  $2.98

The following table summarizes stock option activity:
Weighted-Average

Remaining Aggregate
Weighted-Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Shares Exercise Price Term Value
(Years) (In 000s)
Outstanding Januvary 1,2006........ —
Granted . ... ... .. .. ... ... ... 4,395,921 $ 6.52
Exercised . ..................... —
Forfeited orexpired .............. —
Qutstanding December 31, 2006 . . . .. 4,395,921 6.52
Granted ... ........ .. .. ... ... 714,000 13.82
Exercised . ........... . ........ —_
Forfeited orexpired . ............. (206,529) 6.52
Outstanding December 31, 2007 ... .. 4,903,332 7.58 8.9 $25,262
Exercisable at December 31, 2007. . .. 896,049 6.52 8.0 5,403

No options were exercised during 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $9.2 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock-based compensation arrangements granted under the
Plan that will be recognized on a straight line basis over the requisite service and performance periods. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.1 years.

During 2007, an aggregate of 4,000 Restricted Stock Units {*RSU’s) were granted to the Company’s two
independent Directors under the Plan. The RSU’s are fuily vested at December 31, 2007.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, total stock-based compensation expense was $4.3 million.

During 2006, in connection with the Recapitalization, certain of the Company’s officers purchased an
aggregate of 987,022 shares of common stock under the Plan.
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(16) Business Segment and Geographic Information

The Company manages its operations on a geographic basis. Financial results of geographic regions are
aggregated into one reportable segment since their operations have similar economic characteristics. These
characteristics include similar products and services, processes for delivering these services, types of customers,
and long-term average gross margins.

The Company operates in the United States and Canada. Revenues are attributable to countries based on the
location of the customers. The information presented below shows geographic information relating to revenues
from external customers: :

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In 000s)
Revenues from external customers:
Domestic............ i it $1,682,279 31,586,714 $1,411,517
Foreign ......... ... . ... ... . .. .. i 86,903 66,174 49,240
Total .. e e $1,769,182  $1,652,888  §1,460,757

The information presented below shows geographic information relating to rental equipment and property and
equipment at:

December 31,

2007 2006
{In 000s)
Rental equipment, net
DOMEStIC . . ottt e $1,838,148  $1,670,181
Foreign ... .o i e 91,366 68,489
Total .. e e $1,929,514  $1,738,670
Property and equipment, net
Domestic. . ..covv vt i e e $ 181,483 § 163,049
Foreign . .. ... e 10,418 7,143
Total ... e $ 191,901 % 170,192

(17) Selected Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

Three Months Ending
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(In 000s, except per share amounts)

2007
Total TEVENUES . .. .o oot et e e e $406,347  $442,828 $461,954 $458,053
Grossprofit . ...... .. ... . . .. .. 142,492 171,940 188,408 176,515
Income before provision for income taxes . . . . 33,258 28,489 77,952 62,815
Net income available for common

stockholders .. ............. ... ..... 20,243 17,425 47,549 38,037
Diluted net income per common share. . . . . .. 0.22 0.18 0.45 0.36
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Three Months Ending

March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
(In 000s, except per share amounts}

2006
Total revenues ...............c.cuvuun.. $385,891  $413,822 $427.599 $425,576
Grossprofit .......... ... ............ 128,309 152,896 166,953 156,950
Income before provision for income taxes . . . . 64,884 85,817 96,632 57,130
Net income available for common

stockholders . ....................... 37,171 49,714 59,603 32,037
Diluted net income per common share. . ... .. 0.1t 0.15 0.18 0.13

Diluted net income per common share for each of the quarters presented above is based on the respective
weighted average number of common and dilutive potential common shares outstanding for each quarter and the
sum of the quarters may not necessarily be equal to the full year diluted net income per common share amounts.
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Schedule 11
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
RSC Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries

The following table summarizes activity for allowance for doubtful accounts:

2007 2006 2005
(In 00Gs)
Beginning balance at January 1, ... ......... ... . it $6978 §$7474 $9,166
Provision forbad debt . . ... .. ... ... ... . .. e 5,653 5,076 5,395
Charge offs, Net. . ... ... e s (4,033) (5,572 (7,087)
Ending balance at December 31, .. ........... ... .. ... ... . $8598 $6978 $7474
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no. 333-140644)

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to RSC Holdings Inc.’s Form S-1, dated February 13, 2007 (file
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David Mathieson
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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements

Certain statemenis contained herein are
“forward-looking statements,” within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These
statements are based on management’s
current expectations and are subject

to uncertainty and changes in factual
circumstances. The forward-loaking
statements herein include statements
regarding the company’s future financial
position, business strategy, budgets,
projected costs and plans and objectives
of management for future operations.

In addition, forward-looking statements
generally can be identified by the use

of forward-looking terminology such as
“may”, “plan”, “seek”, "will", “expect”,
“intend", “estimate”, “anticipate”, "believe”
or “continue” or the negative thereof or
variations thereon or similar terminology.
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